
Yolo County Transportation District Board of Directors 

AGENDA

DIRECTORS:   Don Saylor (Chair, Yolo County), Tom Stallard (Vice-Chair, Woodland), Lucas Frerichs (Davis), Chris 
Ledesma (West Sacramento), Jesse Loren (Winters), Matt Dulcich (UCD, ex-officio), Greg Wong (Caltrans, ex-
officio) 

ZOOM WEBINAR WEB ADDRESS: https://zoom.us/j/94926173219
ZOOM WEBINAR PHONE NUMBER: (669) 900-6833
ZOOM WEBINAR ID: 949 2617 3219 
All participants will be entered into the webinar as attendees. 

MEETING DATE: Monday, April 11, 2022
MEETING TIME: 7:00 PM

Pursuant to the Government Code section 54953(e)(1), members of the Yolo County Transportation District Board of Directors 
and staff will participate in this Meeting via teleconference. This Executive Order authorizes local legislative bodies to hold 
public meetings via teleconference and to make public meetings accessible telephonically or otherwise electronically to all 
members of the public.  

Further instructions on how to electronically participate and submit your public comments can be found in the Public 
Participation Instructions note at the end of this agenda. 

To submit a comment in writing, please email public-comment@yctd.org. In the body of the email, include the item number 
and/or title of the item (if applicable) with your comments. All comments received by 4:00 PM on Monday, April 11, 2022 will 
be provided to the YCTD Board of Directors in advance. During the meeting, comments can be made by using the Zoom ‘raise 
hand’ feature. Comments submitted via email during the meeting shall be made part of the record of the meeting, but will not 
be read aloud or otherwise distributed during the meeting.  
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The Chairman reserves the right to limit speakers to a reasonable length of time on any 
agenda item, depending upon the number of people wishing to speak and the time available. 
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7:00 PM 1. Determination of Quorum 
(Voting members: Woodland, Davis, West Sacramento, Winters, Yolo County) 
(Nonvoting members: Caltrans, UCD)

X 

7:05 PM 2. Comments from public regarding matters on the consent calendar, or items NOT on the 
agenda but within the purview of YCTD.  Please note, the Board is prohibited from 
discussing items not on the agenda.

CONSENT CALENDAR 
7:10 3a. Approve Agenda for April 11, 2022 meeting X 

3b. Approve YCTD Board Minutes for Regular Meeting of March 14, 2022 (Koh) (pp 1-3) X 

3c. Authorize Executive Director to enter into an agreement with DGS for up to five years 
(Bernstein) (pp 4-13)

X 

3d. Compensation for Senior Transportation Planners (Bernstein) (p 14) X 

3e. Approve Contract for Interim Chief Financial Officer (Bernstein) (pp 15-22) X 

3f. Adopt Resolution R 2022-03 Authorizing Filing of FY22 LCTOP Grant Allocation 
Requests and Agreements (Mazur) (pp 23-25)

X 

https://zoom.us/j/94926173219
mailto:public-comment@yctd.org


4. Administrative Reports (p 26)
(Discussion regarding subjects not specifically listed is limited to clarifying questions) 

 Board Members’ Reports 

 Transdev’s Report  

 Executive Director’s Report

X

5. Board Chair Rotation (Bernstein) (p 27) X 

6. FY 22-23 Budget Development: Planned Service Levels and Operating Expenses 
(Bernstein and Perez) – with Leo Levenson of Regional Government Services (pp 
28-34)

X

7.  Prioritizing Community Service Requests (Bernstein, pp 35-36) X

8. Audited Financial Statements and Compliance Reports and Governance Letter for 
the Fiscal Year Ending June 30 2021 (Bernstein) - with Brian Nash of Richardson 
& Co. (pp 37-47)

X 

8:00 9. Adjournment X

UNLESS CHANGED BY THE YCTD BOARD, THE NEXT MEETING OF THE YOLO COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL BE MAY 9, 2022 AT 7:00 PM IN THE YCTD 
BOARD ROOM, 350 INDUSTRIAL WAY, WOODLAND, CA 95776 OR BY ZOOM IF RECOMMENDED FOR 
THE SAFETY OF THOSE INVOLVED. 

The Board reserves the right to take action on all agendized items, including items under the Executive 
Director's Report, at any time during the meeting, except for timed public hearings. Items considered routine or 
non-controversial are placed on the Consent Calendar. Any Consent Calendar item can be separately addressed and 
discussed at the request of any member of the YCTD Board. 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted on or before Friday, April 8, 2022 at the 
Yolo County Transportation District Office (350 Industrial Way, Woodland, California).  Additionally, copies were 
FAXED or transmitted electronically to the Woodland, Davis, West Sacramento, and Winters City Halls, as well as to 
the Clerk of the Board for the County of Yolo. 

______________________ 
Mimi Koh, Clerk to the Board 



Public Participation Instructions 

Based on guidance from the California Department of Public Health and the California Governor’s Office, in 
order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, please do the following: 

1. You are encouraged to participate in the April 11, 2022 YCTD Board of Directors meeting remotely via the 
Zoom platform using the following meeting details: 

a. Via PC:     https://zoom.us/j/94926173219
Webinar ID: 949 2617 3219 

All participants will be entered into the webinar as attendees. 

b. Via Phone: Phone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Webinar ID: 949 2617 3219  

All participants will be entered into the webinar as attendees. 

2. If you are joining the webinar via Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, click the "raise hand" 
button. If you are joining the webinar by phone only, press *9 to raise your hand. Please wait for the host to 
announce the comment period has opened and indicate that you wish to make a comment at that time. The 
Clerk of the Board will notify the Chair, who will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to 
comment. Speakers will be limited to 2:00 minutes.  

3. If you choose not to observe the YCTD Board of Directors meeting but wish to make a comment on a specific 
agenda item, please submit your comment via email by 4:00 p.m. on Monday, April 11, 2022 to Clerk of the 
Board, at public-comment@yctd.org or by phone at 530-402-2819 noting in the subject line: For Public 
Comment. Your comment will be placed into the record at the Board meeting. 

https://zoom.us/j/94926173219
mailto:public-comment@yctd.org




BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Approve YCTD Board Minutes for 
Regular Meeting of March 14, 2022 Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

3b
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  M. Koh Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends for the Yolo County Transportation District (YCTD) Board of Directors approve the Minutes 
for the Regular Meeting of March 14, 2022.

MARCH, 14 2022 BOARD MEETING MINUTES:
YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
March 14, 2022
Yolo County Transportation District (via videoconference)
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA 95776

Chair Saylor called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and requested roll call to confirm quorum was in attendance 
through Zoom remote participation. The following individuals were in attendance:

Board Member Jurisdiction In Attendance Absent
Don Saylor (Chair) Yolo County X
Lucas Frerichs (Primary) Davis X
Chris Ledesma (Primary) West Sacramento X
Jesse Loren (Primary) City of Winters X
Tom Stallard (Primary) City of Woodland X
Matt Dulcich (Ex-Officio) UC Davis X
Greg Wong (Ex-Officio) Caltrans X

YCTD staff in attendance were Executive Director Autumn Bernstein, Deputy Director of Operations, Planning & 
Special Projects Jose Perez, Assistant Planner Daisy Romero, Clerk to the Board Mimi Koh, and IT System 
Technician Daniel Gomez

Additional attendee(s) included:  Senior Deputy for Yolo County Counsel Hope Welton, Transdev General 
Manager Michael Klein.

Director Saylor asked for public comments for items not on the agenda.  Ms. Koh noted that Mr. Alan Hirsch sent 
in a public comment via email and provided details of the email to the Board.

Mr. Hirsch provided public comments.
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Agenda Items 3a, 3b, 3c, 3d, 3e, 3f — Consent Calendar

Director Ledesma made the motion, seconded by Director Loren, to approve the following items on the 
Consent Calendar:

3a. Approve Agenda for March 14, 2022 meeting
3b. Approve YCTD Board Minutes for Regular Meeting of February 14, 2022
3c. Renew Authorization for Remote Meetings
3d. Adopt Updated Procurement Manual
3e. Adopt Resolution R 2022-02 Authorizing Filing of Grant Applications and Executing Grant 
Agreements and Supplemental Documents for Various Grant Programs
3f. Authorize Staff Listed on the Special Districts and Other Agencies Authorization Form – FY 2021- 
2022 to Perform Tasks on Behalf of the Governing Board

Frerichs 
Ledesma 
Loren 
Stallard

Agenda Item 4 — Administrative Reports
Item 4 is a non-action item and for informational purposes only.
Ms. Bernstein, Board Members, Michael Klein and Ms. Koh presented on items listed on the Administrative 
Reports section of the regular calendar.  They were:

• Board Members’ Report
o Director Stallard provided comments regarding his meeting with Mollie D’Agostino, member

of the YCTD Citizens Advisory Committee.
o Director Loren asked for updates regarding the Woodland microtransit system.

• Ad Hoc Committee on 80 Managed Lanes Report
Ms. Bernstein stated that discussions from the last meeting included the following topics:

o Committee met once since the previous Board meeting, and one additional meeting with
Caltrans District 3 and SACOG staff

o Discussions continue about revising the project description and list of alternatives 
o Discussions have primarily focused on discussion of tolling
o Interstate 80 and Interstate 50 connector in West Sacramento is also a topic of discussion
o Establishing and MOU between YCTD and Caltrans to clarify roles and responsibilities

• Transdev’s Report
o Mr. Klein provided hiring and training updates

• Executive Director’s Report
Ms. Bernstein provided comments to include:

o New format for Executive Directors report to be sent bi-weekly via email
o Internal conversations regarding implementation of new personnel policies
o Discussions from the last CAC meeting

• Long-range Calendar
o Ms. Koh presented the long range calendar which was included in the Board packet, a living

document projecting future agenda items and topics for the remainder of the 2022 calendar
year Board meetings

Ms. Alan Hirsch provided public comments.
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Roll Call for Agenda Items 3a, 3b, 3c, 3d, 3e, 3f — Consent Calendar

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN STATUS OF MOTION
Saylor Passed Unanimously



____ _ _

Agenda Item 5 — Resuming Suspended Express Routes 43, 43R, 45 and 230. Conclusion of L Line 
service assistance
Mr. Perez and Ms. Romero provided an overview of the staff report.
Director Frerichs stated that he appreciated the report and provided comments.
Director Frerichs made the motion, seconded by Director Stallard, to approve staff’s recommendation to resume 
some limited express services that were suspended in September of 2021 due to a driver/operator shortage, and 
to conclude the temporary assistance of the L line service that is being provided locally in the City of Davis.

Frerichs 
Ledesma 
Loren 
Stallard

Agenda Item 6 — General Reserve Policy
Ms. Bernstein and Mr. Levenson provided an overview of the staff report.
Director Frerichs provided comments regarding voting requirements for drawing down on reserve.  Mr. 
Levenson, Ms. Welton, Ms. Bernstein, and Board members discussed the requirements and agreed on the 
voting requirements to a minimum of three votes of the five Board members for drawing down on reserve.

Staff recommended the Board’s approval to establish a reserve policy for YCTD amended and include the 
Board’s recommendation of the voting requirements for drawing down on reserve.

Director Establish Stallard made the motion to accept the staff’s recommendation, modified to require a 3/5 
vote of the Board rather than a 4/5 vote to draw down reserves. The motion was seconded by Director Loren.

Frerichs 
Ledesma 
Loren 
Stallard

Agenda Item 7 – Adjournment

There being no further regular business, Chair Saylor adjourned the regular meeting at 7:44 pm and reminded 
the Board of the next scheduled meeting to be held on April 11, 2022, at 7pm.

Respectfully submitted:

_____ _____ ___________________________________
Mimi Koh, Clerk to the Board
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Roll Call for Agenda Item 5 – Resuming Suspended Express Routes 43, 43R, 45 and 
230. Conclusion of L Line service assistance

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN STATUS OF MOTION
Saylor Passed Unanimously

Roll Call for Agenda Item 6 – General Reserve Policy

AYES NOES ABSENT ABSTAIN STATUS OF MOTION
Saylor Passed Unanimously



BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Authorize Executive Director to enter 
into an agreement with DGS for up to 
five years

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

3c
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  J. Perez Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Yolo County Transportation District (YCTD) Board of Directors authorize the 

Executive Director or their designee to enter into a Gas Services Agreement (GSA) with the Department of 
General Services (DGS) for the acquisition of natural gas and related services for a term of up to five years.

BACKGROUND:
YCTD is currently in an agreement with the Department of General Services (DGS) for the acquisition of natural 

gas and related services which expires June 30, 2022. Renewal of the agreement for a term of up to five years will 
allow YCTD to continue to benefit from negotiated gas rates which have historically been lower than what they 
would have been if purchased solely through YCTD’s gas utility, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E).

In 2016 YCTD transitioned from purchasing “core” gas services from PG&E to “non-core” gas which reduced
the transport costs for District natural gas fuel. In order to remain on non-core gas services and benefit from
discounted gas rates, the fuel must be purchased by a third party. At that time YCTD elected to enter into a five- 
year agreement with DGS with which would enable them to attract long-term suppliers of renewable natural gas 
(RNG). Purchase and use of RNG also results in YCTD being able to claim certain state and federal credits and 
air quality benefits, which help offset higher costs.

DGS follows the public procurement competitive bidding process to select and contract with natural gas
suppliers for the exclusive benefit of their customers. DGS handles all gas supply and delivery arrangements, 
both with the gas suppliers and the gas utility companies and provides bill consolidation and quality control, 
combining supply and transportation into a single monthly bill, decreasing administrative and record keeping 
costs. DGS maintains an auditable 'paper trail' for all gas purchases and billing and records processes are 
established to make things go smoothly for customers such as YCTD when necessary for audit information 
requests.

DGS customers can commit to up to five years of gas purchases. This allows DGS to provide a long-term risk
management portfolio to protect against short-term price spikes. Gas is periodically purchased for future delivery 
when market conditions appear favorable. Purchasing tools include fixed price gas, price caps and collars, separate 
purchases of gas commodity and interstate transportation (basis), and options. Pool gas not pre-purchased and is 
bought at market index prices. Market prices are extremely volatile. Market tools and strategies are used to reduce 
volatility and make it easier to predict budget needs. One-year pool contracts offer the same techniques as the 
multi-year, but with risk management limited to future purchases of no more than one year, should YCTD elect 
not to commit to a multi-year commitment.

A proposed agreement, including terms and conditions, is attached to this staff report and District counsel will
review the agreement prior to execution.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Department of General Services

Natural Gas Services
Gas Services Agreement

Agreement Signature Cover Page

This Agreement is entered into between the Department of General Service (hereinafter “DGS”) and

(hereinafter “Participant”)

The term of gas deliveries under this Agreement shall commence on __________________________________, 
and shall terminate at 11:59 PM on: (Pick one and Initial)

_____ June 30, 2023 Fixed - One Fiscal Year Term

_____ June 30, 2023, Evergreen - One Fiscal Year but shall continue for the longer of (i) additional
12-month Fiscal Year (July 1 to June 30) periods beyond that date, commencing on July 1 of 
each subsequent fiscal years, unless terminated by either party effective as of June 30 of the 
current Fiscal Year, by giving written notice to the other party on or before February 15 of the 
current fiscal year or (ii) the term of any Special Purchase Attachment or Amendment made a 
part of this document. (GSA automatically renews for an additional one-year term unless 
deliberately ended. Termination takes effect at fiscal year-end following February 15 notice)

_____ June 30, 2027 Fixed - Five Fiscal Years Term

_____ June 30, 2027 Evergreen - Five Fiscal Years but shall continue for the longer of (i) the term of
any Special Purchase Attachment or Amendment made a part of this document or (ii) at the end 
of the Fiscal Year five (5) years after written notice delivered on or before February 15th of any 
year by either party.  (GSA automatically renews annually to maintain a five-year term unless 
sooner terminated. Termination takes effect after five years from February 15 notice)

The parties agree to comply with all parts of this Agreement, which include:
ü Signature Cover Page (1 page)
ü Terms and Conditions Attachment (7 pages)
ü Information Attachment (1 page)

Optional
¯ Special Purchase Authorization
¯ Special Purchase Attachments
¯ Any subsequent Amendments to this Agreement

Participant
BY (Authorized Signature)

?

DATE SIGNED

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

Department of General Services
BY (Authorized Signature)

?

DATE SIGNED

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING
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Meter Meter Number Meter Address Other Information
A

B

Meter Contact Name Phone Email
A

B
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Name: Address:
Phone:

Phone: Email:

Name: Address:
Phone:

Phone: Email:

Name: Address:
Phone:

Phone: Email:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
Department of General Services

Natural Gas Services
Gas Services Agreement

Information Attachment

Participant Name: _________________________________ Date: ______________________

Contact for Business Issues

Contact for Gas Billing & Accounting Issues

Individual Account Information

Utility Account #

Contact Information for Gas Supply Issues and Emergency Notification

Emergency/24-Hour Contact



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Department of General Services

Natural Gas Services
Gas Services Agreement

Terms and Conditions Attachment

1. RECITALS

1.1 The Department of General Services (“DGS”) organizes participating natural gas users into
one or more gas aggregation groups based on Gas Services Agreement (“GSA”) duration and
geographic location within the state. Participants shall be granted access to available goods and 
services based on the duration of their GSA and appropriate Tariff Rules.

1.2 Participant is a city, county, city and county, district, or other local governmental body, or
nonprofit hospital or educational institution that expends public funds.

1.3 Participant desires to enter into this GSA with DGS for the acquisition of natural gas and
related services.

1.4 Natural Gas Services (“NGS”) is a program within the Office of Risk and Insurance
Management (“ORIM”) operated by DGS and authorized under Public Contract Code section
10299.1 for the procurement of natural gas and related services.

1.5 This Gas Service Agreement is a Contract for coordination services for the purchase and
management of natural gas consumption by the Participant.

2. DEFINITIONS

1.6 Account:  the numerical identification number provided by the Local Distribution Company
to track and consolidate usage information and calculations for metered services.

1.7 Agent:  DGS or any of its service providers designated and granted access to the
Participant’s meter for the purpose of managing gas deliveries for consumption. The Agent may
also be referred to as the Contract Marketer.

1.8 Citygate:  the virtual receipt point on the Local Distribution Company pipeline system that
precedes natural gas delivery to the Participant’s meter.

1.9 Commencement Date:  the date when the parties begin their obligations to perform under
the Agreement.

1.10 Commodity Cost:  the monthly cost of natural gas commodity purchased by DGS for the 
Participant. The cost shall be the actual cost incurred by DGS to acquire gas, including any supply 
markup of gas supplier and without markup by DGS.

1.11 DGS Fee:  $0.0065 per therm of gas delivered to the Participant, not to exceed a maximum 
of $27,000 per Account per fiscal year, subject to the right of DGS to revise either sum based on 
changes to service conditions and operating costs. Program rates are approved annually and 
calculated in conformance with the State Administrative Manual (“SAM”) Section 8752.

1.12 Distribution Cost:  all costs and charges (including where applicable intrastate 
transportation costs) of the Local Distribution Company for natural gas transportation and related
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Department of General Services  Gas Services Agreement
Natural Gas Services  Terms and Conditions Attachment

services to the Participant’s Account. The cost shall be the actual cost for utility services without 
DGS markup.

1.13 Load Management Fee (“LMF”):  the per therm share for services related to real-time 
commodity buying and selling and pipeline administration and balancing within a single utility 
region or aggregation Pool.

1.14 Local Distribution Company (“LDC”):  the natural gas utility operator transporting natural 
gas from the pipeline system to the Participant’s meter(s). This includes Investor-Owned Utilities, 
Public-Owned Utilities, Municipal-Owned Utilities, and City/Municipal Public Works.

1.15 Meter:  the delivery endpoint for delivery of natural gas by the LDC. One or more meters 
may be subordinate to a single Account.

1.16 Notice of Termination (“Notice”):  the written declaration of one Party to the other of its 
intent to end services under the GSA. Notice received by February 15 of each year will effectuate 
termination of services at the fiscal year end corresponding to the Term of the GSA and any 
Special Purchase conditions.

1.17 Party or Parties:  refers to DGS (or NGS) and the Participant.

1.18 Projections:  the estimate of natural gas requirements for the next full month of future 
natural gas delivery. Projections shall be established no later than five (5) working days before the 
beginning of the month for which the gas will physically flow.

1.19 Requirement(s):  the amount of natural gas needed by the Participant to service its 
operations. This GSA represents a “full-requirements” agreement, meaning that the Participant will 
be supplied all the natural gas used by its meter without limitation.

1.20 Special Purchase:  any gas commodity, gas storage services, or gas transportation 
services purchased by DGS at the Participant’s specific request as an optional service, as 
specified in one or more Amendments, Attachments, or Exhibits to this GSA. Any volumes or 
services provided by a Special Purchase shall be deemed the first delivered to or used by the 
Participant. The Termination Date of any GSA shall automatically be extended to ensure full 
satisfaction by the Participant of any Special Purchase.

1.21 Term of Gas Deliveries (“Term”):  the length of time over which the GSA is valid. The 
GSA Term may be for a one (1) or five (5) year Fixed or Evergreen duration. A Fixed Term ends on 
June 30 at 11:59 p.m. either one (1) year or five (5) years from the Commencement Date. An 
Evergreen Term shall automatically be extended for a one (1) or five (5) successive year period at 
the end of each fiscal year unless Participant shall give contrary notice to DGS according to the 
Notification of Termination procedure as described in section 2.11 above. On each July 1, the 
Evergreen Term renews to retain the Agreement at a one (1) or five (5) year duration.

1.22 Termination Date:  the scheduled date that services between DGS and Participant cease. 
Under typical circumstances, the Termination Date shall be June 30 at 11:59 p.m. of the 
corresponding one (1) or five (5) year period unless automatically extended.

1.23 Transmission Cost:  Participant’s share (if any) of contracted backbone transportation 
service on interstate and intrastate pipelines connected to the LDC Citygate.
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Department of General Services  Gas Services Agreement
Natural Gas Services  Terms and Conditions Attachment

3. DGS RESPONSIBILITY

1.24 DGS will arrange for the acquisition of gas commodity and contracts with gas supplier(s) 
and other parties in accordance with applicable state law and LDC requirements, for the delivery of 
the Participant’s Full Requirements and Special Purchases, if any, to the Account(s) identified in 
the Information Attachment to this GSA.

1.25 DGS will negotiate and implement natural gas purchase, transportation, and other services 
for Participants upon request, which may include a bid or request for proposal process.

1.26 DGS will arrange the necessary natural gas nominations and scheduling with the LDC, 
subject to the LDC’s capability to deliver gas to Participant.

1.27 DGS will provide Participant with monthly reporting of gas usage and detailed invoicing of 
costs in a format suitable for auditing the total natural gas used by the Account.

1.28 DGS will make payments to the appropriate entities for the Commodity Cost, Distribution 
Cost, and any special adjustments, as necessary, for Participant’s Requirements.

1.29 DGS will monitor, and where it deems necessary or appropriate for the operation of the 
program, participate in the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) and Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) natural gas related proceedings for the purpose of attempting to 
modify the impact of regulatory proposals on the NGS program.

1.30 Whenever possible, DGS will provide information and assistance on any matters related to 
the gas supply for the Participant’s Account(s). DGS recommends Participants obtain their own 
legal counsel or trading advice as deemed necessary.

1.31 Annually, DGS will review commodity fundamentals and industry changes in private or 
regional meetings with the Participant(s).

4. PARTICIPANT RESPONSIBILITY

1.32 Participant shall submit to DGS a completed Gas Services Agreement Signature Cover 
Page for each required one (1) or five (5) year Fixed or Evergreen periods. The GSA expires on 
June 30 of the termination year unless automatically extended by a Special Purchase.

1.33 Participant shall provide appropriate notice to DGS of request to terminate as outlined in 
this GSA section 2.11

1.34 Participant agrees to purchase the Requirements for the Account(s) listed in the Information 
Attachment from DGS and to pay DGS promptly for those purchases. In no event shall Participant 
acquire any gas commodity, financial structures, or hedges; storage services; or transportation 
services from any service provider other than DGS for the Account(s) registered by this GSA 
during the term of this Agreement.

1.35 Participant hereby appoints DGS as its exclusive Agent for the term of this Agreement to 
coordinate the procurement of natural gas for the Account(s) described in the Information 
Attachment. Participant also authorizes DGS, on behalf of the Participant, to request all billing and 
usage records from the LDC and to receive all invoices for transportation, storage, or balancing 
services related to those Account(s). Participant agrees to execute such documents as are 
reasonably required by DGS, the LDC, or other service partners to ensure efficient and 
uninterrupted delivery of natural gas and related services for the Participant.
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Department of General Services  Gas Services Agreement
Natural Gas Services  Terms and Conditions Attachment

1.36 Participant agrees to assist DGS in estimating future monthly Requirements for its Account
(s) and to approve those projections for use by DGS and its supplier(s) in procuring and scheduling 
natural gas for delivery.

1.37 Participant acknowledges that variation to its normal, historical, or projected usage, or 
termination of gas service with the LDC without advance notice to DGS will produce operational 
disruption which may result in additional or unplanned costs. Participant agrees to notify DGS in 
advance, or as soon as known, of any scheduled or unplanned changes in operations (including 
major equipment shut down, scheduled or unscheduled outages, or new load addition) that would 
significantly affect gas Projections or Requirements.

1.38 Participant agrees that prior to a change of Agent or discontinuation of gas service with 
DGS or the LDC, whether temporary or permanent, it will notify DGS of its intent such that 
remaining Participants are unaffected. Any costs incurred from Participant’s actions or failure to 
notify DGS shall be paid by the Participant.

1.39 Participant agrees to promptly notify DGS of any changes to the Contact Information 
provided in the Information Attachment.

5. PAYMENT

1.40 DGS shall provide Participant with a monthly invoice detailing the cost for natural gas 
service to the Account(s) served under this Agreement. The invoice will specify the Commodity 
Cost, Distribution Cost, Transmission Cost, operating fees (inclusive of DGS Fee and LMF), and 
any special adjustment(s), with supporting documentation.

1.41 Participant shall remit payment to DGS no later than thirty (30) days from the date the 
invoice is received. If available, payment shall be made via the state’s Intrafunds transfer or 
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) protocols. If such payment methods are not available, payment 
shall be made by check or money order to DGS in full no later than thirty (30) days from receipt.

1.42 Any charges incurred by DGS as a result of Participant’s late payment shall be charged to 
the Participant in accordance with Government Code 926.19.

6. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

1.43 Disputes:  In the event of a dispute, Participant will attempt resolution with DGS by 
providing a written explanation of the situation. If no resolution is found, Participant shall file a 
“Notice of Dispute” with DGS within ten (10) days of the failed resolution at the following address:

Attn:  Chief, Office of Risk & Insurance Management
Department of General Services
Ziggurat
707 3rd Street
Sacramento, CA 95605

The ORIM Chief or their designee shall meet with the Participant for purposes of resolving the 
dispute. The decision of the ORIM Chief or their designee shall be final. In the event of a dispute, 
the language contained within this agreement and its Amendments, Attachments, or Exhibits shall 
prevail over any other language.

Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by the ORIM Chief will excuse Participant 
from full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.
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Department of General Services  Gas Services Agreement
Natural Gas Services  Terms and Conditions Attachment

1.44 Errors:  If either DGS or Participant believes an error has occurred in the amount billed to 
Participant, the party discovering the error shall immediately notify the other. Upon notification or 
discovery of any error, DGS shall review the bill and calculate the correction, if any, to be made. 
DGS will incorporate any needed correction in the next available invoicing cycle. Participant 
understands that the DGS invoice is determined by LDC reported meter readings. If a revision to 
the meter reading or other adjustment is made by the LDC, additional or excess volumes of gas 
required may result in cost adjustments to prior periods or fiscal years. Adjustment costs or credits 
will be applied on the next billing cycle by DGS to the Participant.

1.45 Continued Performance:  Both DGS and Participant shall continue to perform their 
respective obligations under this Agreement until any error or dispute of error is resolved as herein 
provided. Participant agrees that full payment shall be made to DGS for all invoices, without 
reduction for any error or alleged error in billing.

7. FORCE MAJEURE

1.46 Excuse of Performance:  Neither DGS nor Participant shall be liable to the other for failure 
to perform to the extent such failure was caused by Force Majeure.

1.47 Force Majeure under this Agreement means an uncontrollable force that is not within the 
control of the Party relying thereon and could not have been prevented or avoided through the 
exercise of due diligence.

1.48 Force Majeure shall include, but not be limited to (i) physical acts of God, landslides, 
lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms or storm warnings which result in evacuation of the affected 
area, floods, washouts, or explosions, breakage or accident or necessity of repairs to machinery or 
equipment or lines of pipe; (ii) weather related events affecting an entire geographic region, such 
as low temperatures which cause freezing or failure of wells or lines of pipe; (iii) curtailed and/or 
interruption of firm transportation and/or storage by transporters; (iv) acts of others such as strikes, 
lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, riots, sabotage, insurrections or wars; and
(v) governmental actions such as necessity for compliance with any court order, law, statute,
ordinance, regulation, or policy having the effect of law promulgated by a governmental authority 
having jurisdiction. DGS and Participant shall make reasonable efforts to avoid the adverse 
impacts of a Force Majeure and to resolve the event or occurrence once it has occurred in order to 
resume performance.

1.49 Neither party shall be entitled to the benefit of the provisions of Force Majeure to the extent 
performance is affected by any or all of the following circumstances: (i) the curtailment of 
transportation, or if acquired, storage services, unless all transportation to the Participant is 
curtailed; (ii) the party claiming excuse failed to remedy the condition and to resume the 
performance of such covenants or obligations with reasonable dispatch; or (iii) economic hardship; 
(iv) the Participant’s inability to use or resell gas purchased hereunder; or (v) the loss or failure of 
DGS gas supply or depletion of reserves, except as provided in this Section. The party claiming 
Force Majeure shall not be excused from its responsibility for LDC imbalance charges.

1.50 The party whose performance is prevented by Force Majeure must provide Notice to the 
other party. Initial Notice may be given orally; however, written Notice with reasonably full 
particulars of the event or occurrence is required as soon as reasonably possible. Upon providing 
written Notice of Force Majeure to the other party, the affected party will be relieved of its 
obligation, from the onset of the Force Majeure event, to make or accept delivery of gas, as 
applicable, to the extent and for the duration of Force Majeure, and neither party shall be deemed 
to have failed in such obligations to the other during such occurrence or event.
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1.51 In the event the Participant claims an event of Force Majeure has occurred at any of its 
Account(s), it shall advise DGS, and DGS shall advise its gas supplier(s) and other parties as 
necessary. If the supplier disputes the claim, the Participant agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 
DGS harmless from any claims arising from such a dispute. DGS shall include a parallel provision 
in its purchase transaction with its gas supplier(s) and other parties as necessary.

1.52 In the event of a disputed claim of Force Majeure, DGS shall attempt to liquidate the 
volumes of gas from any Special Purchase during the period of the alleged Force Majeure and to 
escrow any funds collected separate from other funds until the issue is resolved. Any proceeds or 
losses from such liquidation will be allocated as agreed upon by the Parties and gas supplier, or in 
the absence of an agreement, pursuant to the decision of the ORIM Chief.

8. REGULATORY CHANGE

The parties recognize that the delivery of natural gas services, including interstate and intrastate 
transmission services, storage, and other matters, is subject to regulatory change. In the event of 
regulatory changes that affect the terms and conditions of natural gas delivery to California and/or 
within California, the parties agree to negotiate in good faith amendments to this Agreement to 
reestablish the same relative balance in risk and reward between DGS and the Participant as is 
currently contemplated in this Agreement. In no event shall a regulatory change relieve the 
Participant from paying for Requirements received.

9. DEFAULT

1.53 The failure of either DGS or Participant to fulfill any duties or obligations under this 
Agreement or any Amendments, Attachments, or Exhibits to this Agreement shall be an event of 
default. Upon occurrence of an event of default, the non-defaulting party shall provide the other 
party with a written Notice of Default.

1.54 Either party shall have twenty-five (25) days after receipt of such a Notice to cure the 
default or, if the default cannot be cured within such time, to take steps to commence to cure the 
default and diligently pursue such cure, provided, however, if the event of default by the Participant 
is a failure to make payments to DGS as specified, Participant shall have only ten (10) days to cure 
the default, unless specified otherwise in writing. If the defaulting party shall not have cured or 
commenced the cure as specified by the specified date, the non-defaulting party may terminate 
this Agreement. If the non-defaulting party elects to terminate this Agreement, it shall so inform the 
defaulting party in writing.

1.55 A waiver of a breach or default under this Agreement shall not be deemed to waive any 
subsequent breach or default. The failure of a party to enforce compliance with any term or 
condition of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of such term or condition by that party.

10. GENERAL CONDITIONS

1.56 Except as provided in this Agreement, DGS and the agents and employees of DGS, in the 
performance of this Agreement, shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers, 
employees, or agents of the Participant.

1.57 Participant acknowledges and agrees that to the extent DGS is providing any services via 
contract with other parties (such as gas suppliers), DGS shall have no liability for the actions of any 
third party, except those actions specifically directed by DGS.

1.58 DGS agrees that any third-party contractor with DGS shall be required by DGS to 
indemnify, defend, and save harmless the State of California, its officers, agents, and employees
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from any and all claims, actions, losses or judgments arising out of or in connection with services 
provided under this Agreement to Participant.

1.59 If the third-party contractor supplying gas defaults, DGS will use its powers to claim 
indemnity from the gas supplier for the benefit of all Participants, if any such action is needed. 
Any benefits so derived will be shared with all Participants affected, on a pro-rata share basis, to
the degree that they have been harmed. If DGS is not able to provide continuing gas service at the 
agreed upon prices and level of service, Participant shall have the option of cancellation of this 
Agreement, thirty (30) days after written notice to DGS of that intention.

1.60 This Agreement is not assignable by either party, either in whole or in part, without the 
written consent of the other party.

1.61 Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

1.62 No alterations or variations of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in 
writing and signed by the parties hereto, and no understanding or Agreement not incorporated 
herein shall be binding on any of the parties hereto.

1.63 All Parties to this Agreement agree that they, the Bureau of State Audits, or their 
designated representative shall have the right to review and to copy any records and supporting 
documentation pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. DGS agrees to maintain such 
records for possible audit for a minimum of three (3) years after final payment.

1.64 This Agreement constitutes the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
Agreement between DGS and Participant as to the matters referenced and supersedes all prior 
and contemporaneous understandings or Agreements of the Parties.

1.65 If a Participant has several Participant Accounts, this Agreement shall apply to all 
Participant Accounts that are identified in the Information Attachment.

1.66 Notices:

If to Participant:

As specified in the Information Attachment

If to DGS:

Department of General Services – Office of Risk & Insurance Management 
Natural Gas Services Manager
PO Box 989052
West Sacramento CA 95798-5092
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Compensation for Senior Planner Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

3d
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  A. Bernstein Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board approve a motion authorizing the Executive Director to pay both employees 
who hold the position of Senior Transportation Planner a salary of $124,519.

BACKGROUND:
YCTD currently employs two Senior Transportation Planners who have comparable levels of professional 
experience (20+ years) and perform similar duties with similar levels of responsibility. Both are valued by their 
colleagues and YCTD management for their excellent performance.

These two individuals were hired two years apart, under different YCTD administrations and in very different labor
markets. In 2021, YCTD conducted a salary and compensation survey, the first in many years. In December 2021,
the Board increased the salary range for all YCTD employees consistent with the findings of that survey. All existing
YCTD staff received a salary increase to the bottom of the new range, regardless of experiencwe. Since the salary
ranges were increased, and in this highly competitive labor market, it has been necessary to offer salaries 
significantly higher than the bottom of the range in order to fill vacant positions.

As a result, a significant discrepancy in pay exists between the two Senior Transportation Planners. Ensuring fairness
and consistency in compensation among staff in the same classification is a priority for staff retention and well-
being.

Under YCTD’s recently adopted personnel policies, the Executive Director is authorized to increase salaries by a 
maximum of 5% per year. To address the discrepancy between these two individuals would require an increase of 
greater than 5% for the individual who is currently paid less.

Staff requests that the Board pass a motion authorizing the Executive Director to pay both employees who hold the 
position of Senior Transportation Planner a salary of $124,519.
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Approve Contract for Interim Chief 
Financial Officer

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

3e
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  A. Bernstein Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the YCTD Board of Directors approve a contract with Leo Levenson to become the Interim 
Chief Financial Officer for a period of up to two years.

BACKGROUND:
YTCD’s former Deputy Director for Finance and Grants, Janice Bryan, retired in November 2021. In December 
2021, the YCTD Board of Directors approved a contract with Regional Government Services to provide interim 
advising and oversight of YCTD finances, as well as an assessment of YCTD’s financial management systems.

Leo Levenson is the lead consultant on the RGS team. In the 3+ months he’s spent advising YCTD, we have made 
great strides toward modernizing, clarifying and improving our financial management processes and systems.

YCTD staff had initially intended to hire a permanent replacement for the Deputy Director position by May 2022. 
However, we now recommend that the best course of action is to bring Mr. Levenson on board as Interim Chief 
Financial Officer for up to two years, and then hire a permanent replacement.

The rationale for this decision is two-fold:
a) First, Mr. Levenson will provide continuity to successfully guide the finance team through the important 

transitions he has begun, including new accounting and payroll systems, new grant management and tracking
procedures, and addressing a backlog of overdue procurements and grant administration tasks.

b) Second, Mr. Levenson is a valued advisor, teacher, and mentor for staff at all levels of the organization. 
After the many leadership transitions the agency has experienced over the last 18 months, maintaining 
stability is a priority for the YCTD management. The staff value and trust Mr. Levenson and are eager to 
continue working with him.

Mr. Levenson is exceptionally qualified, having recently served as the CFO for the San Francisco Municipal 
Transportation Agency (SFMTA). In addition to his time at SFMTA, Mr. Levenson served in a variety of other 
financial leadership positions within the City of San Francisco, primarily in the San Francisco Controller’s Office.

Mr. Levenson has agreed to serve in the position for up to two years. If his contract is approved by the Board, he
will work remotely from his home in Berkeley, and will travel to the YCTD offices once a month for face to face
meetings with the staff.

BUDGET IMPACT:
15



Mr. Levenson has agreed to a salary within the Board-approved range for the Deputy Director of Finance. By 
bringing him on as interim staff, rather than continuing to pay him as a consultant Regional Government Services, 
our monthly expenditures for his services will be reduced compared to the amount we are currently paying.
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AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY PERSONAL SERVICES
between

YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
and

LEO LEVENSON

This AGREEMENT FOR TEMPORARY PERSONAL SERVICES (hereinafter 
“Agreement”), effective April 25, 2022 (“Effective Date”), is made and entered into between the 
YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT (hereinafter “YCTD”), a California special 
district, and LEO LEVENSON, an individual to be employed by YCTD as its Interim Chief 
Financial Officer.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by YCTD and LEO LEVENSON (hereinafter “Interim 
Chief Financial Officer”) as follows:

DUTIES:  Under the direction of the Executive Director, the Interim Chief Financial Officer plans, 
organizes, directs, and reviews the operations and activities of the finance, budgeting, accounting, 
auditing, revenue forecasting, purchasing, payroll, benefits, asset management, grants financial
management, contract compliance, risk management and all other financial functions of the 
organization in a manner that supports the YCTD’s vision, mission and priorities. Oversees the 
human resources function of the District directly or with the assistance of contracted services.

The Interim Chief Financial Officer’s essential duties and functions shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following:

• Develops and directs the implementation of goals, objectives, policies, procedures and
work standards for finance and administrative services assuring consistency with
District’s goals, objectives, and policies.

• Assures financial policies, procedures and internal controls conform to Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) requirements.

• Plans, organizes and manages the financial and fiscal affairs of the District; prepares
budgets, financial reports and statements; ensures reporting compliance with local, state
and federal laws, rules and regulations; coordinates and provides support to internal and
external audits; supervises accounting activities and staff; monitors agency expenditures; 
coordinates investments and serves as custodian of District’s funds; prepares financial 
reports for the Executive Director and Board of Directors.

• Directs all purchasing and procurement activity. Reviews bids and proposals for
correctness, completeness, price and compliance of items to specifications, and to
District’s adopted procurement procedures.

• Assists with preparation of state and federal grant applications and is responsible for their
proper administration.

• Manages a fare collections system; monitors bus, fare system and other procurements.
• Ensures application of internal controls to prevent loss or fraud.
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• Reviews, implements and monitors transactions related to special projects, such as
construction and consultant contracts, capital acquisitions, and change orders.

• Performs financial modeling and forecasting; ensures financial sustainability.
• Ensures compliance with financial administrative policies and creates and updates them

as needed.
• Coordinates preparation and ensures timely submittal of the annual operating and capital

budgets.
• Advises the Executive Director as to all matters pertaining to the District’s financial and

administrative services functions.
• Ensures timely submission of required submittals, including quarterly grant financial and

progress reports, National Transit Database report, State Controller’s report,
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) report, etc.

• Ensures compliance with the District’s records management policy.
• Administers and oversees insurance programs for the District, including property,

liability, health insurance and benefits, and workers' compensation programs.
• Monitors developments and legislation related to finance and administrative services,

evaluates their impact and recommends and implements policy and procedural
improvements.

• Plans, organizes, manages and reviews District payroll and timekeeping processes
through subordinate supervisors and/or lead staff.

• Develops and administers programs to ensure employee health and safety and agency
compliance with safety and health laws and regulations.

• Provides direction to District staff in the major disciplines of human resources directly or
with assistance of contracted services, including the administration, interpretation and
implementation of policies and procedures; oversees procedures for the evaluation of 
employee performance management and evaluation; recruitment and selection; 
classification and compensation; employee assistance and wellness programs; employee 
development and training activities.

• Represents the District in meetings with representatives of governmental agencies,
professional and business organizations, California Transit Insurance Pool (CALTIP),
and the public; makes presentations to the Board of Directors and others.

I. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM:  The term of this Agreement shall be for two (2) years,
beginning April 25, 2022 and terminating no later than April 24, 2024.

II. SCREENING TESTS: This Agreement shall be contingent upon the satisfactory completion
of the following screening on or before April 25, 2022:

a. A satisfactory Department of Justice Live Scan background check.
b. A clean drug and alcohol test, which shall be arranged by YCTD.
c. Documentation for the I-9 Employment Eligibility Verification.
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III. COMPENSATION: The Interim Chief Financial Officer is to be paid the annual sum of
$162,490.00 for fulfilling the duties described herein, accruing neither overtime nor 
compensatory time, biweekly in accordance with YCTD’s standard payroll procedures. The 
Interim Chief Financial Officer shall be eligible for any Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) 
that is approved by the Board of Directors for YCTD staff pursuant to Chapter 8 of the YCTD 
Personnel Rules and Regulations as amended  December 2021 (YCTD Personnel Rules). The 
Interim Chief Financial Officer shall also be subject to the holidays,  vacation, sick leave, and 
floating holiday provisions provided to YCTD employees under Chapter 12, 13 and 14 of the 
YCTD Personnel Rules, including the 40 hours of Administrative Leave credited to 
Management Positions on July 1 of each year.

IV. BENEFITS: The Interim Chief Financial Officer shall be afforded the benefits provided YCTD
employees under Chapter 9 of the YCTD Personnel Rules.

V. GENERAL BUSINESS EXPENSES:

a. YCTD shall provide electronic equipment necessary to ensure the Interim Chief Financial 
Officer accessibility and availability pursuant to this Agreement.

b. Consistent with YCTD’s Adopted Personnel Policies and subject to prior approval by the 
Executive Director, YCTD agrees to pay for travel and subsistence expenses (alcoholic 
beverages excluded) of the Interim Chief Financial Officer for professional and official 
travel, meetings, short courses, seminars, and committees upon which the Interim Chief 
Financial Officer serves on behalf of YCTD.

VI. TERMINATION AND DISMISSAL: The Interim Chief Financial Officer shall serve at the
will and pleasure of the Executive Director, and may be terminated at any time, with or without
cause. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prevent YCTD, in its sole discretion,
from terminating this Agreement and the services of the Interim Chief Financial Officer. The 
following provisions shall apply to termination and dismissal:

a. If the Executive Director terminates the employment of the Chief Financial Officer for cause, 
the termination shall be effective immediately and no severance shall be provided.

b. If the Executive Director terminates the employment of the Executive Director without 
cause, YCTD shall pay the Executive Director severance pay in an amount equal to three (3) 
months of the monthly base salary specified in Section V of this Agreement and continue health 
benefits for that period of time pursuant to Section VII of this Agreement.

c. This severance payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the 
termination and is subject to applicable withholding taxes.

This Section XI is intended to comply with California Government Code section 53260 et seq. 
Pursuant to California Government Code section 53260, in no event shall the Interim Chief 
Financial Officer receive a settlement that exceeds an amount equal to the monthly salary
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multiplied by the number of months remaining on the unexpired term of this Agreement. 
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 53243.2, any lump sum severance payment 
or other noncontractual payments related to termination paid to the Interim Chief Financial 
Officer under Section VI of this Agreement shall be fully reimbursed by the Interim Chief 
Financial Officer to YCTD if the Interim Chief Financial Officer is convicted of a crime
involving an abuse of the office or position. For purposes of this Agreement, the phrase “abuse 
of the office or position” shall have the meaning set forth in Government Code section 53243.4. 
This Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of Government Code sections 53243- 
53243.4, which require reimbursement to YCTD under circumstances stated therein.

VII. TERMINATION BY INTERIM CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER: The Executive Director
may terminate this Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 
Executive  Director. In the event that the Interim Chief Financial Officer should exercise the
option to terminate this Agreement (resign from YCTD employment), the Interim Chief
Financial Officer shall not be entitled to any severance pay or continuation of health
benefits.

VIII.   APPLICABLE LAW: This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with and governed 
by the laws of the State of California.  Should any provision of this Agreement be determined
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall
nevertheless be binding and effective.

IX. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between YCTD
and the Interim Chief Financial Officer and supersedes all prior agreements respecting the
same subject.

YCTD and the Interim Chief Financial Officer agree and acknowledge that no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements, orally or otherwise, have been made by any party, or 
anyone acting on behalf of any party, which are not included herein and that any agreement, 
statement, or promise not contained in this Agreement shall not be valid or binding on either 
party.

X. WAIVER OF RIGHTS: Any waiver at any time by either party hereto of its rights with
respect to a breach or default, or any other matter arising in connection with this Agreement,
shall not be deemed to be a waiver with respect to any other breach, default or matter.

X1. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE: Except as otherwise provided herein, the use by either
party of any remedies specified herein for the enforcement of this Agreement is not exclusive 
and shall not deprive the party using such remedy of, or limit the application of, any other 
remedy provided by law.

XII. HEADINGS: Paragraph headings and titles of attachments as used herein are for convenience
only and shall not be deemed to alter or modify the provisions of the paragraph headed thereby.

XIII. INTERPRETATION: The parties acknowledge that each party has reviewed, negotiated, and 
had an opportunity to discuss with counsel this Agreement and that the normal rule of
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construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall 
not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any document executed and 
delivered by any party in connection with transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

XIV. WORKER’S COMPENSATION: Pursuant to the State of California Labor Code, Section 
3700, et seq., YCTD shall secure workers’ compensation insurance for the Interim Chief
Financial Officer.

XV. INDEMNIFICATION: YCTD shall provide for the defense of the Interim Chief Financial
Officer in any action or proceeding alleging an act or omission within the scope of employment
of the Interim Chief Financial Officer in conformance with State law (Government Code 
sections 995, et seq.). In addition, any funds provided by YCTD for the legal criminal defense 
of the Interim Chief Financial Officer shall be fully reimbursed to YCTD by the Interim Chief 
Financial Officer if the Interim Chief Financial Officer is convicted of a crime involving an 
abuse of the office or position as required under Government Code section 53243.1.

XVI. AMENDMENTS: Any modifications of this Agreement will be effective only if in writing and
signed by both YCTD and the Interim Chief Financial Officer.

XVII. NOTICE: Any notices required or permitted pursuant to this Agreement shall be given in
person or by certified or registered mail, addressed as follows:

To YCTD:
YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way,
Woodland, CA  95776

To the Interim Chief Financial Officer:  LEO LEVENSON
1749 Vine St.
Berkeley CA 94703

XVIII. COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES:  This Agreement may be executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall 
constitute one and the same instrument and shall become effective when counterparts have
been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other parties; it being understood that 
all parties need not sign the same counterparts.  The exchange of copies of this Agreement 
and of signature pages by facsimile transmission, by electronic mail in “portable document 
format” (“.pdf”) form, or by any other electronic means intended to preserve the original
graphic and pictorial appearance of a document, or by combination of such means, shall
constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the parties and may be
used in lieu of the original Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the parties transmitted 
by means shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, YCTD and the Interim Chief Financial Officer hereto have executed 
this Agreement as of the Effective Date.
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____________________________________________________
LEO LEVENSON  Date

____________________________________________________ 
Autumn Bernstein
YCTD Executive Director  Date
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Adopt Resolution R 2022-03 
Authorizing Filing of FY22 LCTOP 
Grant Allocation Requests and 
Agreements

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

3f
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  K. Mazur Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends the Yolo County Transportation District Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution No. R 
2022-03, authorizing the Executive Director (or designees) to file FY 2021-22 Low-Carbon Transit Operations
Program (LCTOP) applications and execute all necessary documents with the California Department of
Transportation (Caltrans) and other federal, state, regional, local agencies or entities necessary to receive LCTOP 
funds.

BACKGROUND:
The LCTOP program is one of several established under Senate Bill (SB) 862, approved in 2014. SB 862 is
commonly referred to as the Cap-and-Trade bill. LCTOP provides assistance to transit agencies to reduce their 
greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with emphasis on benefiting disadvantaged communities.

YCTD has been allocated $439,053 in FY 2021-22 LCTOP funds. YCTD will request that Caltrans program the 
funds to the Transit Fare Subsidies project, which includes the following three components:

(1) Continue Yolobus “Youth Ride Free” program for youth ages 0-18 for one additional year beyond the 
current expiration date of June 30, 2022 (new expiration date of June 30, 2023);

(2) Offer fare free days for all riders on at least 32 days, including promotional “try transit” days, spare the air
days, and select holidays; and

(3) Offer subsidized fares/tickets to nonprofits that serve low-income clients.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO.  R 2022-03

AUTHORIZATION FOR APPLICATION TO THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS
PROGRAM (LCTOP)

WHEREAS, the Yolo County Transportation District (YCTD) is an eligible project sponsor and
may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for transit projects; and

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or regional 
implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation (Department) as the 
administrative agency for the LCTOP; and

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering and 
distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and

WHEREAS, YCTD desires to submit to the Department an application for the Transit Fare Subsidies 
project; and

WHEREAS, YCTD wishes to authorize its Executive Director, or his/her designee the Deputy 
Director of Operations, Planning, and Special Projects, or the Deputy Director of Finance, Grants, and 
Procurement, to execute these documents and any amendments thereto,

NOW, THEREFORE, RESOLVED, ORDERED, AND FOUND by the Board of Directors of the 
Yolo County Transportation District, County of Yolo, State of California, as follows:

1. The foregoing recitals, and each of them, are true and correct.
2. The fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements set forth in the Certification and 

Assurances and the Authorized Agent documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for 
all LCTOP funded transit projects.

3. That YCTD’s Executive Director or his/her designee the Deputy Director of Operations, Planning, and 
Special Projects, or the Deputy Director of Finance, Grants, and Procurement be authorized to execute all 
required documents of the LCTOP program and any Amendments thereto, after review by District 
Counsel, with the California Department of Transportation.

4. The Board of Directors of the Yolo County Transportation District hereby authorizes the submittal of the 
following project nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2021-22 LCTOP funds:

Project Name: Transit Fare Subsidies

Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $439,053

Short description of project: The YCTD Transit Fare Subsidies project has three components (1) 
Continue Yolobus “Youth Ride Free” program for youth ages 0-18 for one additional year beyond 
the current expiration date; (2) Offer fare free days for all riders on at least 32 days; (3) Offer 
subsidized fares/tickets to nonprofits that serve low-income clients.

Contributing Sponsors (if applicable): Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) for 
population-based (99313) funds only.
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Item #3f::  Adopt Resolution R 2022-03 Authorizing Filing of FY22 LCTOP Grant Allocation Requests and Agreements

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Yolo County Transportation District, County of 
Yolo, State of California, this 11th day of April, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

__________________________________ 

Don Saylor, Chair

Board of Directors

ATTEST: 

__________________________________

Mimi Koh, Clerk

Board of Directors

Approved as to Form:

___________________________

Hope P. Welton, District Counsel
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic: 
Administrative Reports Agenda Item#: 4 

Informational
Agenda Type: Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  M. Koh Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

BACKGROUND: 

This section of the agenda is reserved for administrative reports. 

This month the Board will receive the following: 

 Transdev’s report 
 Executive Director’s report 

Previously, the YCTD Executive Director provided a monthly written report to the Board as part of the Board packet 
and augmented that with an oral report during the meeting.  Beginning with the March 2022 board meeting, the 
YCTD Executive Director will provide an oral report only. Additionally, the Executive Director will provide a 
biweekly email update to the Board of Directors, the Citizens Advisory Committee, Technical Advisory Committee, 
and interested stakeholders.  
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Board Chair Rotation Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

5
Discussion

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  A. Bernstein Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Board consider a proposal to change the timing of Board Chair rotation to occur

at the beginning of each calendar year (January 1) instead of mid-year (July 1)., and for Chair Saylor continue 
as Board Chair through December 2022.

BACKGROUND:
Currently, the YCTD Board Chair rotates mid-year.  It was brought to our attention Director Stallard that 
YCTD is the only local agency where the rotation occurs mid-year.  Director Stallard has requested that the 
Board consider moving the rotation to occur at the beginning of each calendar year – and to extend the term of 
the current Chair through the end of the calendar year.
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
FY 22-23 Budget Development: 
Planned Service Levels and Operating 
Expenses

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

6
Informational

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  J. Perez and A. Bernstein Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Provide input and feedback to staff on key building blocks for the FY 22-23 budget, including:

• Planned transit service levels
• Operating expenses (draft)

BACKGROUND:
YCTD is currently in the process of preparing its FY 22-23 budget. Key milestones in the budget development 
process are as follows:

• April 1: Draft of planned service levels, operating expenses and LTF-TDA allocations for FY 22-23
shared with Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).

• April 4: TAC meeting to ask questions and provide feedback on the preliminary draft.
• On or before April 30: Complete draft of the FY 22-23 budget be circulated for internal review and

comment by the TAC. YCTD staff is currently targeting April 15 for release of the draft budget.
• May 9: Complete draft to the YCTD Board of Directors for initial review and discussion.
• June 12: Final draft to the YCTD Board of Directors for approval.

As we work toward development of the complete draft budget, is sharing two ‘building blocks’ for the Board’s 
review and consideration:

• Planned transit service levels
• Operating expenses (draft)

Planned Transit Service Levels

A key component of the budget is the planned service levels and anticipated costs of purchased transportation 
and other operating expenses (i.e., administrative costs, insurance, fuel, etc.). Staff has considered and incorporated
a number of service changes which account for the reduction in COVID-19 impacts and restrictions, variable fuel 
costs, demand from customers (pre-COVID and current), and service expansions and projects. YCTD is planning 
for the resumption of Express services throughout member jurisdictions to address anticipated rider demand from 
commuters returning to employment centers in Sacramento. The postponed expansion of the Route 42A/42B has
also been incorporated into the service plan for the year, as well as minor adjustments to some local services. The
exact timing of these service changes will depend on the availability of driver resources.
Fixed-Route Services

• Route 42A/42B: Intercity service connecting Woodland, Davis, West Sacramento, Sacramento International
Airport, and Downtown Sacramento. 42A operates in a clockwise direction, 42B operates in a counter- 
clockwise direction. Planned service changes includes expansion to 30-minute frequency during peak
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periods during weekdays, and modifying the route path to improve reliability and serve heavily used 
corridors in Davis.

• Route 37: No planned service changes from launch in prior fiscal year.

• Route 40: Serves northern West Sacramento in a counter-clockwise direction. Service schedules adjusted to
resume weekday service to 8:30 p.m. Service span was reduced during COVID and resuming later evening
service will benefit the Disadvantaged Communities served by this route. Weekend service remains 
unchanged from prior year service.

• Route 41: Serves northern West Sacramento in a clockwise direction. Service schedule adjusted to resume
weekday service to 7:10 p.m. Service span was reduced during COVID and resuming later evening service
will benefit the Disadvantaged Communities served by this route. Weekend service remains unchanged from 
prior year service.

• Route 240: Maintains current schedule as permanent Monday-Saturday schedule, and maintains reduced
Sunday schedule. Monday-Saturday service is from approximately 7:10 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Sundays from 
8:10 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

• Route 43/43R Express: Express service connecting Davis to Sacramento. Suspended due to driver shortage.
Limited return in April of 2021. FY 2022-2023 resumes three trips in the morning and evening peaks, and
one trip of the 43R reverse commute route in the morning and evening peak periods. This would return the 
service to 60% of pre-suspension levels.

• Route 44: Express service connecting south Davis to Sacramento. Suspended during COVID and to support
YoloGo services. Service plan is to resume three morning and evening peak periods to meet anticipated
demand from south Davis, specifically when the Route 42 is route is adjusted. This would return the service 
to 60% of pre-suspension levels.

• Route 230: Express service connecting West Davis to Sacramento. Service plan is to resume three morning
and evening peak periods to meet anticipated demand. This would return the service to 100% of pre-
suspension levels.

• Route 45: Express service connecting Woodland to Sacramento. Service plan is to resume three morning
and evening peak periods to meet anticipated demand. This would return the service to approximately 60%
of pre-suspension levels.

• Route 211: Local Woodland service operating in a clockwise direction. No planned schedule or service level
changes for first part of FY 2022-2023. Route will operate for approximately 6 months prior to the launch
of a local Woodland microtransit service, at which time it will be eliminated.

• Route 212: Local Woodland service operating in a counter-clockwise direction. No planned schedule or
service level changes for first part of FY 2022-2023. Route will operate for approximately 6 months prior
to the launch of a local Woodland microtransit service, at which time it will be eliminated.

• Local Davis Support A and L Lines: YCTD will complete the temporary service assistance in Davis by June
2022. No additional local Davis fixed-route service is planned at this time.

• Causeway Connection: Express service connecting UC Davis, Davis, Sacramento, and the UC Davis
Medical Center. No planned service changes.

Additional fixed-route service information is presented in Attachment 1.

ADA and Beyond ADA Paratransit Service

Paratransit service is anticipated to require 14,700 revenue hours, and approximately 261,200 miles for ADA 
and senior paratransit rides in West Sacramento, local ADA rides in Woodland, inter-city ADA rides for Davis,
Woodland, West Sacramento, and unincorporated Yolo County, including the Capay Valley, and Premium service
for ADA eligible clients traveling deeper into Sacramento and parts of Vacaville for medical related purposes.
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Estimates were calculated based on annualized revenue hours and miles in the current fiscal year, and anticipating
an additional 10-percent growth as customers make more non-essential trips due to reduced travel and health 
restrictions. The service is demand-responsive and actual revenue hours and miles may vary.

Microtransit Service

YCTD’s microtransit service will include three distinct zones and services in FY 2022-2023. The Knights 
Landing service connects Knights Landing to Woodland, the Winters service connect Winters to Davis and 
Vacaville. Both services are demand-responsive, and while currently the majority of service requires a single 
vehicle, up to two are available per area. The Knights Landing and Winters microtransit services will continue
without planned service changes, but have been budgeted to assume an increase of 10-percent to account for
anticipated increases in demand as travel and health restrictions are relaxed.

The Woodland microtransit service is being planned and has been budgeted for six-months of operation, to begin 
January 2023. Revenue hours for the Woodland microtransit are budgeted for four vehicles per service day, eight 
revenue hours per service day, five service days a week, and to operate for 26 weeks. A total of 4,200 revenue hours
are projected. Revenue miles for Woodland were estimated by budgeting for four trips per hour, at an average of
three miles per trip. It is estimated the Woodland microtransit will generate 49,900 revenue miles. A dedicated 
planning effort is being coordinated to determine the final Woodland microtransit service level and details, including 
days/time of operation, fares, and number of available vehicles concurrently. If this service planning effort
recommends a more expansive service (eg evening or weekend service), the costs of providing this service may
exceed the budgeted amount.

Preliminary Operating Expenses

Attachment 2 provides a draft overview of operating expenses.  YCTD’s budgeted expenses for transit 
operations and administration will remain largely flat. Increases in the fixed route transit budget ($10.3 million, 
an increase of $653,000 from last year) are offset by decreases in the administration ($3.7 million), microtransit 
($787,000) and paratransit ($1.78 million) budgets.
New for this fiscal year, the multimodal operating budget ($1.57 million) includes several large line items related
to the federal grants for INFRA (Yolo 80 Managed Lanes Project) and RAISE (Yolo Active Transportation
Corridors Project).

In the Administration budget category, labor and benefits costs will increase by 8%, with higher labor costs 
offset by a decrease in benefit costs. This is due in large part to actions taken by the Board in December 2021 to 
eliminate benefits packages and car allowances for the executive team, and update salary ranges and compensation 
policies based on a compensation survey that found most YCTD staff well below the competitive range for their 
positions.

The budget for technology costs have decreased by $150,000 due to the elimination of an expensive, underutilized 
software license, as well as one-time costs associated with launching a new website and real-time bus locator 
technology (Tripspark).  Vehicle maintenance costs of $256,000 which were included in last year’s 
Administration budget have been shifted to the Fixed-Route budget. Other recurring Administration costs were 
right-sized based on actual FY 21-22 spending.

In the Fixed Route budget category, contracted transportation has increased by $208,000 due to the driver wage 
increase approved by the Board in November 2021, as well as an annual cost escalator build into the Transdev 
contract. New in 22-23, $500,000 in professional services will pay for consulting assistance to update mandated 
plans and policies that are long overdue, including:

• Short Range Transit Plan
• 10-year Capital Improvement Plan
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• Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan (due to ARB July 2023)

Partial funding for the updates of these plans was awarded by SACOG to YCTD as part of the Sac UZA 5307 
competitive funding round.  YCTD also has a pending application with the California State Transportation 
Agency (CalSTA) that would also contribute toward the completion of these plan updates.

Other fixed route operating costs, including fuel, EV charging and facility maintenance have been reduced based 
on actual FY 21-22 spending.

New for this year, the budget separates Paratransit from Microtransit to allow for better tracking of costs 
associated with our growing microtransit service. Paratransit costs are an estimate and actual costs will depend
on demand. Microtransit cost increases are driven by assumptions about the timing and structure of new service
in Woodland.
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Item #6::  FY 22-23 Budget Development: Planned Service Levels and Operating Expenses

Attachment 1: FY 2022-23 Service Level Detail
Fixed Route bus Service Descriptions

32

Route Community / Destinations Total Bus Trips
Budgeted FY 2022 Proposed FY 2023

Hours Miles Hours Miles

42A
42B

Intercity: Woodland, Davis, West Sacramento,
Sacramento International Airport, Downtown Sacramento

31 loops M-F
28 loops Sat
28 loops Sun

*From schedules adopted July 2021

17,113
16,432

405,389
380,926

18,997
17,633

488,137
436,084

37 Southport, Gateway, West Sacramento Transit Center, 
Downtown Sacramento

12 loops M-F

- - 4,603 102,093

40 Northern West Sacramento, Ikea Ct, West Sacramento 
Transit Center, Downtown Sacramento

14 loops M-F
11 loops Sat
9 loops Sun

4,762 60,808 5,582 97,140

41 Ikea Ct, Northern West Sacramento, West Sacramento 
Transit Center, Downtown Sacramento

12 loops M-F 3,241 43,310 4,140 79,140

240 Ikea Ct, Reed Ave, Harbor Blvd, West Sacramento 
Transit Center, Downtown Sacramento

12 loops M-F
12 loops Sat
10 loops Sun

4,626 58,171 5,309 102,248

45 West/Central Woodland, Downtown Sacramento Express
3 AM trips M-F

3 PM trips M-F
15,528 37,524 2,668 71,401

211 County Fair Mall, West Woodland Loop

11 loops M-F

11 loops SAT
11 loops SUN

4,652 57,772 2,013 25,550

212 County Fair Mall, East Woodland Loop
11 loops M-F
11 loops SAT
11 loops SUN

4,392 54,743 2,031 25,952

215 Woodland, Madison, Esparto, Capay, Cache Creek 
Casino Resort

12 westbound trips 7 days/wk
12 eastbound trips 7 days/wk 9,187 230,914 9,808 250,784

43

43R

Davis, Downtown Sacramento Express

Reverse Commute: Downtown Sacramento, U.C. Davis 
Express

3 AM loops M-F
3 PM loops M-F

1 AM loops M-F
1 PM loops M-F

1,468 38,758 3,016 80,755

44 South Davis, Downtown Sacramento Express
2 AM loops M-F
2 PM loops M-F

- - 2,156 38,446

230 West Davis, Downtown Sacramento Express
3 AM loops M-F
3 PM loops M-F

1,249 28,321 2,957 78,267

Causeway 
Connection

Service between UCD Med Ctr and UCD Main campus, 
with limited stops between

14 trips per weekday, run by Yolobus M-F
3,950 107,927 3,950 107,927

Total
150 Weekday Bus Trips
85 Saturday Bus Trips
81 Sun/Hol Bus Trips

82,651 1,396,636 84,860 1,983,923



Item #6::  FY 22-23 Budget Development: Planned Service Levels and Operating Expenses

Attachment 2: Draft Operating Expenses for FY 22/23

Administration Operating Expenses
Approved
FY 21-22

Preliminary
FY 22-23 Change

Regular Employees $1,303,301 $1,489,196 $185,895
Interns $50,000 $54,278 $4,278
Overtime $5,000 $5,000 $0
One-time distributions $4,000 $0 ($4,000)
Subtotal Labor $1,362,301 $1,548,474 $186,173
PERS Employer Contribution $251,937 $276,699 $24,762
Social Security Employer Contribution $3,100 $3,365 $265
Medicare Contribution $19,623 $22,453 $2,830
Health Insurance Employer Contribution $216,625 $216,000 ($625)
Retiree Health Insurance $75,394 $68,000 ($7,394)
Unemployment Insurance $5,152 $2,000 ($3,152)
Worker's Compensation Insurance $17,023 $5,000 ($12,023)
Other Employee Benefits $38,037 $10,400 ($27,637)
Subtotal Benefits $626,891 $603,917 ($22,974)

Subtotal Labor & Benefits $1,989,192 $2,152,391 $163,199

Technology Support $384,009 $234,000 ($150,009)
Vehicle Maintenance $256,000 $0 ($256,000)
Facilities Maintenance $84,700 $18,000 ($66,700)
Insurance $711,919 $712,000 $81
Marketing & Communications $195,570 $156,000 ($39,570)
Memberships $30,677 $31,000 $323
Utilities $52,370 $51,000 ($1,370)
Legal Services $40,000 $85,000 $45,000
Employee Training $59,685 $57,000 ($2,685)
Cost of Fuel Sold to Outside Users $54,000 $72,000 $18,000
Unitrans Pass-through $24,000 $24,000 $0
Directors Stipends and Training $7,600 $12,000 $4,400
Other Operating Expenses $153,035 $110,000 ($43,035)
Contingencies $150,000 $250,000 $100,000
Total Administrative Operating Expenses $4,192,757 $3,964,391 ($228,366)
Labor Direct Allocation to Projects $0 ($202,000) ($202,000)
Net Administrative Expenses $4,192,757 $3,762,391 ($430,366)

Approved
Fixed Route Operating Expenses FY 21-22

Preliminary
FY 22-23 Change

Contracted Transportation $7,779,592 $7,988,000 $208,408
Fuel $1,144,211 $993,000 ($151,211)
Electric Vehicle Charging/Fuel $162,677 $36,000 ($126,677)
Professional Services $0 $500,000 $500,000
Vehicle Maintenance $215,058 $280,000 $64,942
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Item #6::  FY 22-23 Budget Development: Planned Service Levels and Operating Expenses

Facilities Maintenance $132,899 $50,000 ($82,899)
Marketing & Communications $44,350 $44,000 ($350)
Other Operating Expenses $1,000 $0 ($1,000)
Technology Support $174,696 $168,000 ($6,696)
Utilities $0 $189,000 $189,000
Contingencies $0 $60,000 $60,000
Total Fixed Route Operating Expenses $9,654,483 $10,308,000 $653,517

Approved
Paratransit Operating Expenses FY 21-22

Preliminary
FY 22-23 Change

Fuel $187,533 $152,000 ($35,533)
Insurance $125,571 $126,000 $429
Contracted Transportation $1,603,208 $1,440,000 ($163,208)
Vehicle Maintenance $0 $60,000 $60,000
Contingencies $20,000 $0 ($20,000)
Total Paratransit Operating Expenses $1,936,312 $1,778,000 ($158,312)

Approved
Microtransit Operating Expenses FY 21-22

Preliminary
FY 22-23 Change

Fuel $92,077 $71,000 ($21,077)
Insurance $58,905 $62,000 $3,095
Contracted Transportation - Knights Landing $93,993 $98,000 $4,007
Contracted Transportation - Winters $102,959 $111,000 $8,041
Contracted Transportation - Woodland $387,795 $407,000 $19,205
Vehicle Maintenance $0 $20,000 $20,000
Technology Support $0 $18,000 $18,000
Total Microtransit Operating Expenses $735,729 $787,000 $51,271

Approved
Multimodal Operating Expenses FY 21-22

Preliminary
FY 22-23 Change

Direct-charged Labor $0 $202,000
Active Transportation Corridors Planning $850,000
Tolling feasibility study/Traffic & Revenue Study $400,000
Advisory and legal services for 80-managed lanes project $100,000
TMA Alternative Mode Incentives $15,000
Total Multimodal Operating Expenses $0 $1,567,000 $0

Total Operating Expenses $16,519,281 $18,202,391
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BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Prioritizing Community Service 
Requests

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

7
Action

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  A. Bernstein Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Provide feedback to staff on prioritization criteria for community service requests, including community events 
and special/charter services.

BACKGROUND:
With the easing of pandemic restrictions, YCTD has recently begun to receive requests for use of our vehicles, 
facilities and bus operators to assist with special events and community needs.

Section 22.0 of our contract with Transdev include a community relations program that includes the following 
elements:

1) Providing bus/equipment demonstrations to groups upon request;
2) Participating in community events (eg parades, toys for tots, canned food drives and media events);
3) Preparing press releases on transit matters associated with YCTD;
4) Attending YCTD board or committee meetings when deemed appropriate by the YCTD Executive Director;
5) Meeting with the public as needed and upon request by the YCTD Executive Director;
6) Preparation of passenger empathy training materials; and
7) Performing charters and special shuttles if authorized by the Executive Director, subject to compliance with 

federal charter requirements.

The contract stipulates that Transdev shall provide up to 150 hours and up to 3,000 miles of vehicle use time each 
year, at no additional expense to YCTD.

Anecdotally, staff understands that the community service program was not fully utilized, even before the COVID 
pandemic restricted community events. We currently have multiple pending requests.

Without any formal guidance or policy on which requests to honor, staff wanted to remind the Board about this 
program and receive feedback and direction on how to prioritize these requests.

Staff proposes that community service requests be evaluated based on the following factors:

Evaluation factors for charter/special service requests:

• Would the special service advance YCTD’s vision, values and priorities?
• Would the service benefit a disadvantaged community or demographic group within Yolo County?
• Is YCTD uniquely positioned to provide the service, or are other reasonable options available via existing

YCTD services or other transit services?
• Would YCTD’s provision of the service conflict with federal charter requirements?
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• How large a share of our community service budget would the request consume?
• Are drivers and vehicles available at the times requested? Or does the request conflict with peak period

service needs?

Evaluation factors for community events (eg parades, festivals etc):

• Does YCTD’s participation in the event advance our vision, values and priorities?
• Does the event offer opportunities to attract new transit riders or support the needs of existing transit riders?
• Does the event coincide with opportunities to solicit community input on upcoming projects, plans or

programs?
• Does the event support one or more member jurisdictions advance their transportation or community

priorities?

36



BOARD COMMUNICATION:  YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, CA  95776---- (530) 661-0816

Topic:
Audited Financial Statements and 
Compliance Reports and Governance 
Letter for the Fiscal Year Ending June 
30 2021

Agenda Item#: 

Agenda Type:

8
Info/Discussion

Attachments:             Yes          No

Prepared By:  L. Levenson, Regional Government Services, on 
behalf of YCTD

Meeting Date:  April 11, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:
Review. Staff and auditors will be available to respond to questions.

BACKGROUND:
YCTD’s external auditors, Richardson & Company have completed their annual audit of the District’s Financial
Statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021, along with required State and Federal Compliance Reports, 
and a Governance Letter (attached). A representative of the Auditors will be available to answer any questions.
Highlights include:

• The Total net position decreased by $1.5 million to $33.7 million as of June 30, 2021, primarily due to 
depreciation. That position is comprised of $23 million in capital assets (mostly buses), and $10 million in
unrestricted net position.

• The unrestricted net position increased by $1.1 million to $9.7 million. This is primarily comprised of $6.4 
million cash on hand as of June 30, 2021, along with $5.8 million in receivables, net of $2.4 million in
payables and other current liabilities.

• FY 21-22 budget assumed the use of $2.6 million of unrestricted prior year funds, and $4.1 million is being 
used to fund YCTD’s general reserve at the target level of 25% of budgeted operating expenditures, 
approved by the YCTD Board of Directors at the March 14, 2022, meeting, This leaves $3 million in 
unrestricted prior year funds available for use in future budget years, along with any operating surplus that
may be realized during the current fiscal year.

• Richardson & Company also prepared Compliance Reports required by the State of California related to the 
use of Transportation Development Act and other State funds, and the Single Audit required by the Federal 
Government related to the use of federal funds. These reported a single finding 2021-001 that YCTD’s 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) initially presented to the auditors excluded grant 
accrual adjustments and excluded two federal grants and contained certain grant award amounts that differed 
from the amounts contained in grant agreements. These issues were discovered and rectified during  the 
audit. These issues were strictly related to reporting, and no issues identified related to the expenditure or
drawdown of federal funds.

• The auditors recommend that the District reconcile grant expenses in the general ledger to the SEFA and 
revenue in the financial statements and have a second member of management review the general ledger 
detail, grant agreements and other information used to prepare the SEFA prior to the start of the audit in the 
future. YCTD’s management response concurs with the finding and details a corrective action plan to ensure
systematic quality control for SEFA reporting for the current fiscal year and moving forward. The reporting
should also be simplified once YCTD implements a new accounting system with improved grant tracking
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capabilities, anticipated to be effective July 2022.

• The attached auditors’governance letter, dated March 14, 2022, states that they “noted no transactions 
entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus”
and reports no significant difficulties or disagreements with management.
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825

Telephone: (916) 564‐8727 
FAX: (916) 564‐8728

GOVERNANCE LETTER

To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District
Woodland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Yolo County Transportation District, (the District) for the 
year ended June 30, 2021.  Professional standards require that we provide you with the following 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and 
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our engagement letter to SACOG dated 
May 21, 2020, as well as our correspondence with a Board member during the audit.  Professional 
standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the District are described in Note A to the financial statements. The 
application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended June 30, 2021.  We noted no 
transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance 
or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper 
period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.

Accounting estimates are used in the following areas:  The fair values of investments in the County of 
Yolo investment pool, depreciable lives used for capital assets, qualifying expenses under grants and the 
net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) asset/liability and related deferred outflows and 
inflows of resources.  Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and experience about past and 
current events and assumptions about future events.  The net OBEB asset and net pension liability were 
determined by actuarial valuations.  Management has determined that no allowance for uncollectible 
accounts is needed based on historical collection rates and specific knowledge about current receivables. 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were related to the 
pension plan disclosed in Note H, the other postemployment benefits plan disclosed in Note I and 
commitments and contingencies disclosed in Note M to the financial statements.
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To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District
Page 2

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements.  We posted six adjustments during the audit, including 
entries to move ADA federal grant revenue from the Fixed Route to the ADA Fund, true-up compensated 
absences and to true-up restricted various cash and net position accounts for reporting purposes.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or 
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the 
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated March 14, 2022.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves 
application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type 
of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the 
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our 
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors.  However, these 
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to required supplementary information (RSI), as reported in the
table of contents, that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries 
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the RSI and 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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We were engaged to report on the District’s combining schedules and schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, which accompany the financial statement but are not RSI.  With respect to this supplementary 
information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of 
preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior 
period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. 
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restrictions on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the District 
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

March 14, 2022
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825

Telephone: (916) 564‐8727 
FAX: (916) 564‐8728

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District
Woodland, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Yolo County Transportation District (the District) as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the District as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as 
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special districts.
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To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s discussion and 
analysis and the required supplementary information as listed in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information and schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards, as required by the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, as listed in the table of contents, are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information and schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 14, 2022 on our 
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters, including the Transportation
Development Act and other state grant program guidelines.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance.

March 14, 2022
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The management of the Yolo County Transportation District (District) is pleased to present the following discussion 
and analysis that provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the District for the years ended June 
30, 2021 and 2020.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and accompanying 
notes, which follow this section.

Background

Until August 1, 1989, the Yolo Transit System and Mini-Transit System were established to meet the transportation 
needs of the general public in and around the County of Yolo as part of the Yolo County’s Enterprise Fund.  A Joint 
Exercise of Powers Agreement was signed between Yolo County and the Cities of Davis, West Sacramento, Winters, 
and Woodland whereby the District would operate as a Joint Powers Agency, called Yolo County Transit Authority, 
pursuant to Section 6500 of the California Government Code and would be administratively separated from the 
County.  The Yolo County Transit Authority’s operations were separated from the Yolo County Enterprise Fund on 
August 1, 1989.  Effective July 1, 1998, the JPA became the Yolo County Transportation District (District) as a result 
of the passage of Assembly Bill No. 2420, which established the District as the consolidated transportation services 
agency and the congestion management agency for Yolo County.  The District’s mission is to provide alternative 
transportation to transit dependent individuals and the general public responsive to the needs of jurisdictions in Yolo 
County, to review and recommend project nominations for Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act and 
other funding, and to monitor the Congestion Management Plan.  In addition to fare revenues, the District receives 
funds under the provisions of the Transportation Development Act from the Yolo County Local Transportation Fund 
and the State Transit Assistance Fund.  The District also receives revenue from Federal Transit Administration grants.

The primary service of the District is to provide Fixed Route Service through twenty-three fixed routes serving West 
Sacramento, Woodland, Davis, Capay Valley, the Sacramento International Airport and downtown Sacramento, 
including local service in Woodland, Winters, and West Sacramento.  The District contributes to Unitrans, which 
provides bus service to U.C. Davis students and residents in Davis.  The District also provides Paratransit Service for 
residents in Woodland, Davis, and West Sacramento to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. A micro- 
transit demonstration pilot for the community of Winters was launched in April, 2020. Transit services are provided 
under contract with Transdev Services, Inc., which is in effect through July 31, 2025.

Financial Highlights

• Total net position, the level by which total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed total liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources, decreased by approximately $1.5 million, to $33.7 million at June 30, 2021
versus $35.2 million at June 30, 2020.

• June 30, 2021 total net position of $33.7 million was comprised of $23 million investment in capital assets, 
$0.7 million in State Transit Assistance and other funds restricted for equipment replacement and capital
projects, and $9.7 million of unrestricted net position.

• For every dollar in current liabilities as of June 30, 2021, the District holds $15.6 in total assets, up from
$11.6 as of June 30, 2020.

• Operating revenues (fares) decreased 22% to $2.7 million during FY 2020-21 compared to $3.4 million 
during FY 2019-20 and $4.0 million during FY 2018-19. This was primarily due to ongoing ridership impacts 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic since March 2020, and provision of free fares for youth, which began in
September 2019.

• Operating expenses decreased 6% to $16.0 million during FY 2020-21, primarily due to reduced purchased 
transportation costs attributable to reduced demand and service levels in response to the COVID-19
pandemic, along with reduced depreciation.
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The Financial Statements

Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, the District’s basic financial statements 
include the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and statement of 
cash flows.

Description of Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s financial statements: the Statement 
of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. 
The statements are accompanied by footnotes to clarify unique accounting policies and other financial information 
and required supplementary information. The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the District are reported on 
a full-accrual basis.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and deferred outflows of resources, 
compared to liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two representing net position 
(equity).  Assets and liabilities are classified as current, restricted or non-current.  Changes from one year to the next 
in total net position as presented on the Statement of Net Position are based on the activity presented on the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position is the District’s income statement.  Revenues 
earned and expenses incurred during the year are classified as either “operating” or “non-operating”.  All revenues 
and expenses are recognized as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of timing of the related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in the disbursement or
collection of cash during future fiscal years (e.g., the expense associated with the final month of purchased 
transportation, involving cash outlay beyond the date of the financial statements).

The Statement of Cash Flows present the changes in District’s cash and cash equivalents during the fiscal year.  This 
statement is prepared using the direct method of cash flow.  The statement breaks the sources and uses of District’s 
cash and cash equivalents into four categories:

• Operating activities
• Capital financing activities
• Noncapital financing activities
• Investing activities

The District’s routine activities appear in the operating activities while purchases of capital assets are in the capital 
activities.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data provided in the financial statements.  The notes describe the nature of the District’s operations and significant 
accounting policies as well as clarify unique financial information.

Richardson and Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has performed an independent audit of the financial 
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Their opinion 
is included in this report.
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Statement of Net Position

A summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position for fiscal years 2020-21, 2019-20 and 2018-19 is as follows:

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

from from
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 2020 to 2021 June 30, 2019 2019 to 2020

Current Assets $     12,164,583 $  12,266,644 $     (102,061) $     10,198,679 $     2,067,965
Restricted Cash and Investments          1,556,091       1,175,705         380,386          1,519,677          (343,972)
Other Postemployment Benefits             141,766          144,662            (2,896)           144,662
Capital Assets, Net        23,240,766     25,979,190     (2,738,424)        18,186,464        7,792,726

TOTAL ASSETS        37,103,206     39,566,201     (2,462,995)        29,904,820        9,661,381

Deferred Outflows of Resources             463,813          474,046          (10,233)             560,334            (86,288)

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $     37,567,019 $  40,040,247 $  (2,473,228) $     30,465,154 $     9,575,093

Current Liabilities $       2,385,324 $    3,400,671 $  (1,015,347) $       1,808,402 $     1,592,269
Non-Current Liabilities          1,356,638       1,287,045           69,593          1,285,227               1,818

TOTAL LIABILITES          3,741,962       4,687,716        (945,754)          3,093,629        1,594,087

Deferred Inflows of Resources             124,720          193,195          (68,475)             100,207             92,988

Net Position
Investment in Capital Assets        23,240,766     25,979,190     (2,738,424)        18,186,464        7,792,726
Restricted for Equipment Replacement

and Capital Projects             515,263          495,487           19,776          1,058,568          (563,081)
Restricted for Capital Purposes - STA             215,316            69,694         145,622             488,707          (419,013)
Unrestricted          9,728,992       8,614,965      1,114,027          7,537,579        1,077,386

TOTAL NET POSITION        33,700,337     35,159,336     (1,458,999)        27,271,318        7,888,018

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND

NET POSITION $     37,567,019 $  40,040,247 $  (2,473,228) $     30,465,154 $     9,575,093

District Assets

The $37.1 million in total assets as of June 30, 2021 represented a $2.5 million decrease from June 30, 2020, primarily 
due to depreciation. Total assets as of June 30, 2020 increased $9.7 million from June 30, 2019, primarily due to the 
acquisition of eight CNG buses during FY 2019-20.
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District Liabilities

The $2.4 million in current liabilities as of June 30, 2021 represented a decrease of $1.0 million from June 30, 2020, 
primarily due to a $1.3 million decrease in payables, offset by a $0.3 million increase in unearned revenue related to 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) funds received for projects not yet completed. This was after an 
increase in current liabilities at June 30, 2020 of $1.6 million to $3.4 million, related to an increase in payables.

The increase of $0.07 million in non-current liabilities during the year ending June 30, 2021 was primarily due to an 
increase in the net pension liability.

The District also reported deferred outflows of resources primarily for pension and OPEB contributions after the 
valuation measurement dates and deferred inflows of resources primarily for the difference between projected and 
actual investment earnings.  See Notes H and I for more information about the District’s pension and OPEB plans.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

A summary of the District’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for fiscal years 2020- 
21, 2019-20 and 2018-19 is as follows:

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Year ending Year ending from Year ending from
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 2020 to 2021 June 30, 2019 2019 to 2020

Operating Revenues $          2,656,266 $        3,408,003 $       (751,737) $        3,959,176 $         (551,173)
Operating Expenses           15,982,161         17,014,105       (1,031,944)         16,375,502             638,603

Net Loss From Operations          (13,325,895)        (13,606,102)           2 80,207        (12,416,326)         (1,189,776)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Transit Administration Grants:

Operating Grants             6,597,864           3,694,021        2 ,903,843           3,797,734            (103,713)
Local Transportation Fund and State Transit

Assistance Allocation             4,526,821           6,397,218       (1,870,397)           6,074,189             323,029
Federal Fuel Excise Tax Refund                195,416              799,125          (603,709)             799,125
Low Carbon Fuel Credits                174,867              130,920             4 3,947             130,920
Interest Revenue                  74,890              176,935          (102,045)              197,763              (20,828)
Compressed Natural Gas Facility Charges                  40,069             4 0,069
Auxiliary Transportation                  11,634              283,339          (271,705)              459,113            (175,774)
State Grants                    3,345              264,402          (261,057)              128,581             135,821
Miscellaneous Revenues                  59,136              121,565            (62,429)                73,843               47,722
Nonoperating Vehicle Fuel                 (40,069)             (203,681)           1 63,612
Other Pass-through Grants to Other Governments                 (24,000)               (24,000)               (24,000)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets                  16,274               (82,363)             9 8,637                 (1,399)              (80,964)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)           11,636,247         11,557,481             7 8,766         10,705,824          1 ,055,338

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS                230,649           9,936,639       (9,705,990)              318,878          9 ,617,761

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,458,999) 7,888,018 (9,347,017) (1,391,624) 9,279,642

Net Position at Beginning of Year           35,159,336         27,271,318 7,888,018         28,662,942         (1,391,624)

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $        33,700,337 $      35,159,336 $    (1,458,999) $      27,271,318 $       7 ,888,018
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Operating Revenues

The District’s operating revenue is a combination of passenger fares, made up of cash from the fareboxes and pre- 
paid fare media, and special fares, which are fares paid for by non-profits and other government agencies. The 
District’s operating revenue decreased by $0.8 million to $2.7 million in FY 2020-21 due to reduced demand as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic. This followed a decrease of $0.6 million in FY 2019-20, also attributable to the 
pandemic and to the launch of a program of free fares for youth, which began in 2019.

The special fares include $1.5 million in FY 2020-21 and $1.7 million in FY 2019-20 of payments by the Yocha Dehe 
Wintun Tribe’s Cache Creek Casino, supporting service to that location pursuant to a mitigation agreement between 
the Tribe and Yolo County in effect since 1999. Those payments were reclassified as operating revenues in these 
financial statements, after being reported as nonoperating revenues in prior financial statements.

Operating Expenses

The District’s operating expenses consist of charges for fixed route, paratransit and microtransit operations, 
administrative expenses, marketing, maintenance expenses, including re-building both transmissions and engines,
depreciation, and other operating expenses.  The FY 2020-21 decrease of $1.0 million in operating expenses to $16.0
million is primarily due to a $0.6 million reduction in purchased transportation costs related to reduced service as a 
result of the COVID-19 pandemic, and a $0.6 million reduction in depreciation expenses. The $0.6 million increase 
in operating expenses during FY 2019-20 was primarily due to an increase in depreciation.

In FY 2020-21 and FY 2019-20, $0.04 million and $0.2 million respectively of fuel expenses were associated with 
outside users of the Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) station owned by the District. These expenses were reimbursed. 
Those reimbursements were reclassified as Non-operating revenues in these financial statements, after being reported 
as an offset to operating expenses in prior financial statements.

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Non-operating Revenues include operating assistance received from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and 
the State of California, along with federal fuel excise tax refunds, credits for use of low carbon fuels, and 
reimbursements for the cost of fuel provided to outside users of the District’s CNG station, and interest revenue.

The increase of Non-operating Revenues of $0.08 million to $11.6 million in FY 2020-21 was comprised of offsetting 
factors, including:

• $2.9 million increase in FTA operating grants, from $3.7 million to $6.6 million, primarily due to CARES
Act funding in response to the COVID-19 pandemic to offset revenue losses.

• $1.9 million decrease in Local Transportation Fund and State Transit Assistance Allocation, from $6.4
million to $4.5 million.

• $0.6 million reduction in federal fuel excise tax refunds, from $0.8 million to $0.2 million, due to the extra
prior year refunds received in FY 2019-20 that were not applicable to FY 2020-21.

The increase of Non-operating Revenues of $1.1 million to $11.6 million in FY 2019-20 was primarily due to the 
receipt of $0.8 million in federal fuel excise tax refunds which were not received in FY 2018-19.

Capital Contributions

Capital contributions consist of grants received by the District from the Federal Transit Administration, Sacramento 
Area Council of Governments and the State of California, from either the Department of Transportation or the
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California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services relating to capital for improvements owned by the District.  The 
decline of $9.7 million in FY 2020-21 to $0.2 million is because 8 CNG buses were purchased in FY 2019-20, while 
no vehicles were purchased in FY 2020-21.

Capital Assets

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

from from
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 2020 to 2021 June 30, 2019 2019 to 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $         465,000 $         465,000 $         465,000

Total capital assets, not being
depreciated            465,000            465,000            465,000
Capital assets, being depreciated

Equipment & Transit Vehicles       43,135,580       43,046,553 $           89,027       37,873,837 $     5,172,716
Building and improvements       12,218,563       12,218,563       11,171,120

Total capital assets, being depreciated       55,354,143       55,265,116              89,027       49,044,957        5,172,716
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Equipment & Transit Vehicles      (25,852,200)      (23,417,978)        (2,434,222)      (25,393,067)        1,975,089
Building and improvements        (6,726,177)        (6,332,948)           (393,229)        (5,930,426)         (402,522)

Total accumulated depreciation      (32,578,377)      (29,750,926)        (2,827,451)      (31,323,493)        1,572,567
Total capital assets being

depreciated, net       22,775,766       25,514,190        (2,738,424)       17,721,464        6,745,283

Capital assets, net $    23,240,766 $    25,979,190 $     (2,738,424) $    18,186,464 $     6,745,283

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, the District’s net investment in capital assets decreased by $2.7 million 
to $23.2 million, due to depreciation of equipment, buildings and improvements. During the year ending June 30, 
2020, net investment in capital assets increased $7.8 million to $25.9 million, due the purchase of 8 CNG buses and 
various other equipment.

Economic Factors and the Future

General economic conditions are expected to improve during 2022 as vaccines for COVID are administered, cases 
have declined and ridership demand is increasing. YCTD has continued its microtransit pilot in Knights Landing, 
while starting a new pilot in Winters, and is exploring further microtransit expansion.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Yolo County Transportation District’s financial 
position and results of operations.  Questions concerning the information provided in this report or requests for 
additional information should be addressed to Mimi Koh, Executive Assistant, Yolo County Transportation District, 
350 Industrial Way, Woodland, California 95776 or mkoh@yctd.org.
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2021 2020
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $     6,353,449 $     6,954,740
Due from Other Governments        4,838,832        4,988,908
Accounts Receivable           972,302           322,996

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS      12,164,583      12,266,644

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,556,091 1,175,705
Other Postemployment Benefits Asset           141,766           144,662
Capital Assets:

Nondepreciable           465,000           465,000
Depreciable, Net      22,775,766      25,514,190

Total Capital Assets, Net      23,240,766      25,979,190
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS      24,938,623      27,299,557

TOTAL ASSETS      37,103,206      39,566,201

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan           323,524           370,222
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan           140,289           103,824

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES           463,813           474,046
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $   37,567,019 $   40,040,247

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $     1,058,383 $     2,386,044
Accrued Wages             25,921             27,366
Due to Other Governments           207,286           255,060
Unearned Revenue        1,040,828           674,713
Accrued Compensated Absences             52,906             57,488

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES        2,385,324        3,400,671

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued Compensated Absences             28,411             36,602
Net Pension Liability        1,328,227        1,250,443

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES        1,356,638        1,287,045
TOTAL LIABILITIES        3,741,962        4,687,716

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan             18,579             70,216
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan           106,141 122,979

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES           124,720           193,195

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets      23,240,766      25,979,190
Restricted for Equipment Replacement and Capital Projects           515,263           495,487
Restricted for Capital Purposes - State Transit Assistance           215,316             69,694
Unrestricted        9,728,992        8,614,965

TOTAL NET POSITION      33,700,337 35,159,336
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $   37,567,019 $   40,040,247

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
OPERATING REVENUE

Passenger Fares $         882,753 $      1,496,048
Special Fares         1,773,513         1,911,955

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE         2,656,266         3,408,003

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Transportation         8,699,088         9,267,371
Salaries and Benefits         1,381,325         1,418,277
Insurance         1,195,226         1,004,643
Vehicle Fuel            940,963            892,117
Other Services and Supplies            938,109         1,036,378
Depreciation         2,827,450         3,395,319

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES       15,982,161       17,014,105

NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS     ( 13,325,895)     ( 13,606,102)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Grants:

Operating Grants         6,597,864         3,694,021
Local Transportation Fund and State Transit

Assistance Allocation         4,526,821         6,397,218
Federal Fuel Excise Tax Refund            195,416            799,125
Low Carbon Fuel Credits            174,867            130,920
Interest Revenue              74,890            176,935
Compressed Natural Gas Facility Charges 40,069
Auxiliary Transportation              11,634            283,339
State Grants                3,345            264,402
Miscellaneous Revenues              59,136            121,565
Nonoperating Vehicle Fuel            ( 40,069)          ( 203,681)
Other Pass-through Grants to Other Governments            ( 24,000)            ( 24,000)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets              16,274            ( 82,363)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)       11,636,247       11,557,481

NET LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS       ( 1,689,648)       ( 2,048,621)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
State Transit Assistance            170,298            334,091
State of Good Repair              60,351
Federal Transit Administration         4,733,820
Tribe            119,890
Other Capital Revenue         4,748,838

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS            230,649         9,936,639

CHANGE IN NET POSITION       ( 1,458,999)         7,888,018

Net Position at Beginning of Year       35,159,336       27,271,318

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $    33,700,337 $    35,159,336

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Receipts From Customers $       2,638,715 $       3,479,089
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services      (13,149,219)      (11,880,634)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services        (1,373,105)         (1,372,495)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES      (11,883,609)        (9,774,040)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants and Subsidies        10,924,559        10,318,533
Pass-through Payments             (24,000)             (22,391)
Other Income           (322,994)             1 68,846
Internal Receipts (Payments)               (1,609)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES        10,577,565        10,463,379

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITES
Capital Contributions Received          1,079,952         5 ,015,345
Acquisition of Capital Assets             (89,027)        (5,657,174)
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets              1 9,324              1 9,361

NET CASH (USED FOR) PROVIDED BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES         1 ,010,249           (622,468)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Pooled Investments               74,890             1 76,935

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES              7 4,890            1 76,935

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS           (220,905)             2 43,806

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year          8,130,445         7 ,886,639

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $      7 ,909,540  $       8,130,445

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Cash and Cash Equivalents $       6,353,449 $       6,954,740
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents          1,556,091         1 ,175,705

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $      7 ,909,540 $       8,130,445

RECONCILIATION OF NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Loss From Operations $   (13,325,895) $   (13,606,102)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss from Operations
to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities:

Depreciation          2,827,450         3 ,395,319
Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments             (17,950)              6 9,089
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB Plan             (36,465)              5 8,310
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Plan               46,698              2 7,978
Accounts Payable and Due to Other Governments        (1,375,434)            3 21,872
Accrued Wages               (1,445)                4 ,634
Accrued Compensated Absences             (12,773)                    (30)
Net OPEB Asset/Liability                2 ,896           (219,449)
Net Pension Liability              7 7,784              8 1,351
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB Plan             (16,838)            1 09,695
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Plan             (51,637)             (16,707)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES $   (11,883,609) $     (9,774,040)

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITY
Capital assets donated $                     - $       4,588,202
Capital asset acquisitions on accounts payable $                     - $       1,047,443

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Yolo County Transportation District (the District) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing 
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  The more significant accounting principles of the 
District are described below.

Description of Reporting Entity:  Until August 1, 1989, the Yolo Transit System and Mini-Transit System were 
established to meet the transportation needs of the general public in and around the County of Yolo as part of the 
Yolo County’s Enterprise Fund.  A Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement was signed between Yolo County and the 
Cities of Davis, West Sacramento, Winters, and Woodland whereby the District would operate as a Joint Powers 
Agency, called Yolo County Transit Authority, pursuant to Section 6500 of the California Government Code and 
would be administratively separated from the County.  The District’s operations were separated from the Yolo 
County Enterprise Fund on August 1, 1989.  Effective July 1, 1998, the District became the Yolo County 
Transportation District (District) as a result of the passage of Assembly Bill No. 2420, which established the District 
as the consolidated transportation services agency and the congestion management agency for Yolo County.  The 
District’s mission is to provide alternative transportation to transit dependent individuals and the general public 
responsive to the needs of jurisdictions in Yolo County, to review and recommend project nominations for 
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act and other funding, and to monitor the Congestion Management 
Plan.  In addition to fare revenues, the District receives funds under the provisions of the Transportation 
Development Act from the Sacramento Area Council of Governments Yolo County Local Transportation Fund and 
the State Transit Assistance Fund.  The District also receives revenue from Federal Transit Administration grants.

The District is a member of the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority (CCJPA). The District is not liable for the 
liabilities of the CCJPA if it dissolves under the related joint exercise of powers agreement. The financial statements 
of the CCJPA is available on its website.

The primary service of the District is to provide Fixed Route Service through twenty-three fixed routes serving West 
Sacramento, Woodland, Davis, Capay Valley, the Sacramento International Airport and downtown Sacramento, 
including local service in Woodland, Winters, and West Sacramento, and contributes to Unitrans, which provides 
bus service to U.C. Davis students and residents in Davis.  The District provides Paratransit Service for residents in 
Woodland, Davis, and West Sacramento to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  The District also 
provides on-demand microtransit service to the communities of Knights Landing and Winters.  Transit services are 
provided under contract with Transdev (formerly Veolia Transportation, Incorporated), which is in effect through 
July 31, 2025.

Basis of Presentation:  The District’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these financial statements as an 
enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group.  The enterprise fund is used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing 
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital 
maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other policies.  The unrestricted net position for 
the enterprise fund represents the net position available for future operations.

Basis of Accounting:  The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its 
measurement focus.  The enterprise fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
associated with the operation of the fund are included on the statement of net position.  Net Position is segregated 
into the investment in capital assets, amounts restricted and amounts unrestricted.  Enterprise fund type operating 
statements present increases (i.e. revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in net position.

The District uses the accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.  Grant revenue is recognized when program expenditures 
are incurred in accordance with program guidelines.  TDA revenues are recorded when all eligibility requirements 
have been met.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a 
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the District are fares received 
from passengers for transportation services.  Operating expenses for enterprise funds included the cost of services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition 
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and Investments:  For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those
amounts included in the balance sheet captions “Cash and cash equivalents” and “restricted cash and cash 
equivalents” and consist of amounts held in a bank account and the County of Yolo cash investment pool, which are 
available on demand.

Capital Assets:  All capital assets are valued at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is 
not available.  The District defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets used in operations are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives, which range from three to twenty-five years.  The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 
Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources:  In addition to assets and liabilities, the balance sheet will sometimes 
report separate sections for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources 
represent a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period.  Deferred
inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period.  These
amounts will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) or an inflow of resources (revenue) until the 
earnings process is complete. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources include amounts deferred related to the
District’s pension plan under GASB 68 as described in Note H and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) plan
under GASB 75 as described in Note I to the financial statements.

Compensated Absences:  Unused vacation leave and compensatory time off may be accumulated up to a specified 
maximum and is paid at the time of termination from District’s employment.  The District is not obligated to pay for 
unused sick leave if an employee terminates prior to retirement.  Retirees may elect to convert their sick leave to 
service credit under the District’s pension plan with PERS.  If the retiree elects not to convert the unused sick leave 
to PERS service credits, 50% of the hours over 200 hours is payable at termination and is included in the 
compensated absences liability.  The District accrues accumulated unpaid compensated absences when earned by the 
employee.  The cost of vacation and compensating time off is recorded in the period earned.

Unearned Revenue:  Amounts reported as unearned revenue consist of funds received by the District before 
appropriate expenses have been incurred to be able to record the funds as revenue.  Amounts at June 30, 2021 and 
2020 represents mainly Low Carbon Transit Operations Program funds held for future projects that would be 
returned to the state if not spent.

Restricted Net Position:  Restrictions of net position show amounts that are legally restricted for specific uses.  The 
amounts restricted for equipment replacement include TDA revenues restricted in accordance with TDA 
requirements since amounts are billed in advance of expenses being incurred.  The restricted for equipment 
replacement and capital projects includes the unexpended proceeds from the Governor’s Office Emergency Services 
as described in Note J.  Restricted for capital purposes represented State Transit Assistance (STA) revenues 
restricted for capital projects through June 30, 2015 because the District did not meet required STA efficiency 
standards necessary to use STA for operating purposes.  The District no longer reports STA as restricted for capital 
purposes unless claimed for capital purposes and not spent.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pensions:  For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB): For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
plan and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the plan. For this purpose, the plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments and participating 
interest-earning investment contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are 
reported at cost.  Investments are reported at fair value.

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual amounts could 
differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications:  Certain accounts in the prior year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative 
purposes to conform to the presentation in the current year financial statements.  These reclassifications had no 
effect on total assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position or change 
in net position.

NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The District’s cash and cash equivalents at June 30 is classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2021 2020

Cash and cash equivalents $    6,353,449 $    6,954,740
Restricted cash and equivalents       1,556,091       1,175,705

Total cash and investments $    7,909,540 $    8,130,445

Cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consisted of the following:

2021 2020

Cash on hand $              400 $              400
Deposits with financial institutions          299,760          117,163
Investment in Yolo County Pooled Investment Fund       7,609,380       8,012,882

Total cash and investments $    7,909,540 $    8,130,445
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Investment policy:  California statutes authorize special districts to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of credit 
instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 – Financial Affairs.  The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by the California Government Code 
that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment

Investment Type Maturity Of Portfolio In One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Obligations 5 years None None
State of California Obligations 5 years None None
California Municipal Obligations 5 years None None
Bankers acceptances 180 days 40% 10%
Commercial Paper - Select Agencies 270 days 25% 10%
Commercial Paper - Other Agencies 270 days 40% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% 10%
Non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit 180 days None 10%
Repurchase Agreements 90 days None 10%
Corporate Medium Term Notes 5 years 30% 10%
Mutual Funds/Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
Local government investment pools N/A None None

The District complied with the provisions of California Government Code pertaining to the types of investments 
held, institutions in which deposits were made and security requirements.  The District will continue to monitor 
compliance with applicable statues pertaining to public deposits and investments.

Interest rate risk:  Interest rate risk is the measurement of how changes in market interest rates will adversely affect 
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the more sensitive the fair value 
is to changes in market interest rates.  As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, the weighted average maturity of the 
investments contained in the County of Yolo investment pool was approximately 408 and 416 days, respectively.

Credit Risk:  Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the 
holder of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  The County of Yolo investment pool does not have a rating provided by a nationally recognized 
statistical rating organization.

Custodial credit risk:  Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in 
the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California 
Government Code requires that financial institutions secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by 
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived 
by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law also allows financial institutions to 
secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured 
public deposits.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect deposits or investment in 
securities through the use of government investment pools (such as the County of Yolo investment pool).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE B – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits was $299,760 and $117,163 and the 
balance in financial institutions was $285,768 and $116,986, respectively.  Of the balance in financial institutions, 
$250,000 was insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and $35,768 was uninsured at June 30, 
2021.  The entire balance in financial institutions was insured by the FDIC at June 30, 2020.

Investment in the County of Yolo Investment Pool:  The District’s cash and cash equivalents is held in the County of 
Yolo Treasury.  The County maintains an investment pool and allocates interest to the various funds based upon the 
average daily cash balances.  Investments held in the County’s investment pool are available on demand to the 
District and are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

NOTE C – RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Restricted cash and cash equivalents as of June 30 consisted of the following:

2021 2020

LCTOP $    1,040,828 $       680,218
Capital reserves          457,387          442,652
Governor's Office of Emergency Services            45,877            45,289
Proceeds from Federal Transit Administration Funded Capital Assets            11,999
County grant - Madison Bus Stop                                    7,546

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents $    1,556,091 $      1,175,705

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District accumulated $457,387 and $442,652 of LTF revenue from its member 
agencies from TDA allocations that is restricted for equipment replacement and capital purposes because it was 
claimed from member agencies for that purpose.  The District received proceeds from the sale of Federal Transit 
Administration funded capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2021 that are restricted for future asset 
purchases.  See Note J for additional information on restrictions related to unexpended LCTOP and Governor’s 
Office of Homeland Security state grant funds.

NOTE D – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The due from other governments consisted of the following at June 30:

2021 2020

Federal Transit Administration grants $    3,569,914 $    3,283,609
California Department of Transportation          446,389          299,921
SACOG - State Transit Assistance          243,597          245,992
Sacramento Regional Transit District          240,214            27,818
Internal Revenue Service - fuel tax rebate          195,416          940,019
University of California, Davis            97,794
Electrify America          185,511
Other            45,508              6,038

Total due from other governments $    4,838,832 $    4,988,908
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the years ended June 30 consisted of the following:

Fixed Route Service

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Balance    Balance
July 1, 2020  Additions  Retirements June 30, 2021

Land $         465,000 $         465,000
Total capital assets, not being depreciated            465,000            465,000

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment and transit vehicles       41,497,875 $         89,027       41,586,902
Buildings and improvements       12,218,563       12,218,563

Total capital assets, being depreciated       53,716,438            89,027       53,805,465

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment and transit vehicles     ( 22,711,358)      (2,193,764)     ( 24,905,122)
Buildings and improvements       ( 6,332,948)         (393,229)       ( 6,726,177)

Total accumulated depreciation     ( 29,044,306)      (2,586,993)     ( 31,631,299)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net       24,672,132      (2,497,966)       22,174,166

Capital assets, net $    25,137,132 $   (2,497,966) $                   - $    22,639,166

ADA Paratransit Service

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment and transit vehicles $      1,548,678 $      1,548,678

Total capital assets, being depreciated         1,548,678         1,548,678

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment and transit vehicles          ( 706,620) $      (240,457)          ( 947,078)

Total accumulated depreciation          ( 706,620)         (240,457)          ( 947,078)

Capital assets, net $         842,058 $      (240,457) $                   - $         601,600

Total capital assets, net $    25,979,190 $   (2,738,423) $                   - $    23,240,766
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June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE E – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Fixed Route Service

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Balance    Balance
July 1, 2019  Additions Retirements June 30, 2020

Land $         465,000 $         465,000
Total capital assets, not being depreciated            465,000            465,000

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment and transit vehicles       36,526,809 $     9,885,707 $   ( 4,914,641)       41,497,875
Buildings and improvements       11,171,120        1,047,443       12,218,563

Total capital assets, being depreciated       47,697,929      10,933,150      ( 4,914,641)       53,716,438

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment and transit vehicles     ( 24,726,924)      ( 2,794,301)        4,809,867     ( 22,711,358)
Buildings and improvements       ( 5,930,426)         ( 402,522)       ( 6,332,948)

Total accumulated depreciation     ( 30,657,350)      ( 3,196,823)        4,809,867     ( 29,044,306)

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net       17,040,579        7,736,327         ( 104,774)       24,672,132

Capital assets, net $    17,505,579 $     7,736,327 $      ( 104,774) $    25,137,132

ADA Paratransit Service

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Equipment and transit vehicles $      1,347,028 $        359,669 $      ( 158,019) $      1,548,678

Total capital assets, being depreciated         1,347,028           359,669         ( 158,019)         1,548,678

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Equipment and transit vehicles          ( 666,143)         ( 198,496)           158,019          ( 706,620)

Total accumulated depreciation          ( 666,143)         ( 198,496)           158,019          ( 706,620)

Capital assets, net $         680,885 $        161,173 $                   - $         842,058

Total capital assets, net $    18,186,464 $     7,897,500 $      ( 104,774) $    25,979,190

NOTE F – COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Compensated absences activity for the years ended June 30 consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2020 Additions Retirements June 30, 2021 one year

Compensated absences $       94,090 $       48,444 $      (61,217) $          81,317 $       52,906

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2019 Additions Retirements June 30, 2020 one year

Compensated absences $       94,120 $       57,477 $      (57,507) $          94,090 $       57,488
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NOTE G – FARE REVENUE RATIO

The District is required to maintain a fare revenue to operating expense ratio of 15% for the years ending June 30, 
2021 and 2020, in accordance with the Transportation Development Act.  The fare revenue to operating expenses 
ratio for the District is calculated as follows for the years ended June 30:

2021 2020

Fare revenues $      2,656,266 $      3,408,003
Other local funds:

Interest Revenue              74,890            176,935
Auxilliary Transportation              11,634            283,339
Compressed Natural Gas Facilty Charges              40,069
Miscellaneous Revenues              59,136            121,565
Proceeds from sales of capital assets              16,274              22,411

Total local funds            202,003            604,250

Total Fare Revenue and Local Support $      2,858,269 $      4,012,253

Operating expenses $    15,982,161 $    17,217,786
Less allowable exclusions:

Depreciation       ( 2,827,450)       ( 3,395,319)

Net operating expenses $    13,154,711 $    13,822,467

Fare revenue ratio 21.73% 29.03%

The District met its minimum required fare revenue ratio for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  Note that the 
2020 calculation was revised to separate federal and state fuel excise tax and low carbon fuel credits from 
miscellaneous revenue.

NOTE H – PENSION PLAN

Plan Description:  All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s 
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (CalPERS).  The District participates in the Miscellaneous Risk Pool and the following rate 
plans:

• Miscellaneous Plan
• PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan

Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues publicly 
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and 
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided:  CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments 
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based on years 
of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible 
to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible 
for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.  The death benefit is the following: the 1957 Survivor 
Benefit or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost-of-living adjustments for the plan are applied as 
specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.
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The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2021 and 2020, are summarized as follows:

2021 2020
PEPRA PEPRA

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Rate Plan Rate Plan Rate Plan Rate Plan
(Prior to (On or after (Prior to (On or after

Hire date January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013) January 1, 2013)

Benefit formula (at full retirement) 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 - 63 52 - 67 50 - 63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible

compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5% 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.750% 8.000% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 12.361% 7.732% 11.432% 6.985%

The Miscellaneous Rate Plan is closed to new members that are not already CalPERS eligible participants.

In addition to the contribution rates above, the District contributed unfunded liability (UAL) payments to CalPERS 
of $108,092 and $96,254 during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Contributions:  Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on 
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any 
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined
rate and the contribution rate of employees.  For the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the employer
contributions recognized as part of pension expense were $180,897 and $179,921, respectively.

Pension Liability, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources:  As of June 30, the District 
reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

2021 2020
Proportionate Proportionate
Share of Net Share of Net

Pension Liability Pension Liability

Net pension liability $        1,328,227 $        1,250,443

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability. 
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the total pension liability for the 
Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 
rolled forward to June 30, 2020 and 2019 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion of the net 
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan 
relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, compared to prior year were as follows:
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Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.03123%
Proportion - June 30, 2021 0.03149%
Change - increase 0.00026%

Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.03102%
Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.03123%
Change - increase 0.00021%

During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $253,742 and $272,546 
respectively.  At June 30, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to the Plan from the following sources:

2021 2020

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $    180,897 $   1 79,921
Differences between actual and expected experience         68,447        8 6,848 $     (6,729)
Changes in assumptions $     (9,473)        5 9,627      (21,137)
Differences between the employer's contributions and

the employer's proportionate share of contributions         24,349        2 8,738
Change in employer's proportion         10,374        (9,106)        1 5,088      (20,488)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on plan investments         39,457     ( 21,862)

Total $    323,524 $   (18,579) $    370,222 $   (70,216)

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year.  Other amounts reported as net 
deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to the Plan will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2021 2020

2020 $    108,979
2021 $      23,867         (8,260)
2022 47,246         14,948
2023 34,009           4,418
2024 18,926

$    124,048 $    120,085
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Actuarial Assumptions:  The total pension liabilities at the measurement date for the Plan used during the years 
ended June 30 were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

2021 2020

Valuation date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Measurement date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate 7.15% 7.15%
Inflation 2.50% 2.50%
Payroll growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected salary increase(1) .4% -8.5% .4% -8.5%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS Membership

Data for all Funds

(1) Depending on entry age, service and type of employment.

Derived using CalPERS Membership 
Data for all Funds

The underlying mortality assumptions were developed using CalPERS-specific data.  The table includes 15 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of Scale MP2016.  Mortality at the June 30, 2020 and 
2019 measurement dates was based on the results of the December 2017 CalPERS experience study for the period
1997 to 2015. Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and
Publications.

Change of Assumptions:  During the year ended June 30, 2020, the demographic assumptions and inflation rate were 
changed in accordance with the CalPERS study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions in December 2017.

Discount Rate:  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% in the June 30, 2020 and 
2019 accounting valuations used for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  To determine whether the municipal 
bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would
most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the
testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets.  Therefore, the 7.15% discount used was appropriate and the use of 
the municipal bond rate calculation was not necessary.  The long term expected discount rate will be applied to all 
plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF).  The stress test results are presented in a detailed report 
called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained from the CalPERS website under the GASB 68 
section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term 
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ 
asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11- 
60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, 
the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the 
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for the Plan.  The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.  These 
rates of return are net of administrative expenses.
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2021 2020
New New

Strategic Real Return Real Return Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b) Allocation Years 1 - 10(a) Years 11+(b)

Global equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98% 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62% 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81% 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23% 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real asssets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93% 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92% 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

(a)  An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(b)  An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate:  The following 
presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, 
as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

2021 2020

1% decrease 6.15% 6.15%
Net pension liability $    1,992,939 $  1 ,874,043

Current discount rate 7.15% 7.15%
Net pension liability $    1,328,227 $  1 ,250,443

1% increase 8.15% 8.15%
Net pension liability $       778,996 $      735,706

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan:  At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District had no significant payables to the Plan.

NOTE I – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN

Plan Description: The Yolo County Transportation District Retiree Healthcare Plan (“Plan”) is an agent multiple- 
employer defined benefit healthcare plan that provides OPEB benefits consisting of medical insurance premiums to 
all employees once they attain 50 years of age (52 for employees hired on or after January 1, 2013), have five years 
of CalPERS credited service with the District or other agencies or have an approved disability retirement.  Benefits 
are also provided to employees’ surviving spouses and other eligible dependents.  The Plan provides healthcare 
benefits through the California Public Employees’ Retirement system healthcare program (PEMHCA), which 
invests the Plan’s assets through the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT).  The CERBT is a tax- 
qualified irrevocable trust organized under Internal Revenue Code Section 115 to administer retiree healthcare 
benefits and collectively invest plan assets of all trust members.  The CERBT issues publicly available financial 
statements that can be obtained from the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov under the Forms and Publications. 
No other publicly available reports are available for the plan.
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Benefits Provided:  The District is required to provide a contribution toward monthly retiree medical premiums for 
the retiree’s lifetime or until coverage is discontinued at a rate of 90% for management employees and 100% for
non-management employees, respectively, multiplied by a phase in percentage of 95% up to a maximum amount 
ranging from $621 for single to $1,616 for family coverage for non-management employees.  The benefits do not 
cease at age 65 when the retiree or spouse is eligible for Medicare.  Benefits continue to surviving spouses and 
dependents.  Implied subsidies are valued for community rated plans such as PEMHCA under revised Actuarial 
Standards of Practice (ASOP) No. 6 released in May 2014.

In December 2021 the District changed its contribution method for non-management employees so that it will be 
indexed to the cost of the plans instead of the maximum coverage amounts described above.  The change is effective 
February 1, 2022.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms:  At the measurement date, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms:

2021 2020

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 3 3
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits 2 2
Active employees 10 10

Total 15 15

Contributions:  The Board of Directors has the authority to establish and amend the contribution requirements of the
District and employees under powers granted to it under the California Government Code.  The District’s current 
benefits were defined under Board Resolution 2014-05.  The required contributions are described above.  Employees 
are not required to contribute to the Plan.  The District’s contributions during the year ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 
were $93,267 and $83,559 and consisted of direct payments of insurance premiums of $21,898 and $14,977, implied 
subsidy payments of $13,815 and $20,348 and contributions to CERBT of $57,554 and $48,234, for a total of 
$13,815 and $83,559, respectively.

Net OPEB Liability:  The District’s net OPEB liability at June 30, 2021 and 2020 was measured as of June 30, 2020 
and 2019, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by a bi-annual 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions:  The total OPEB liability at the June 30, 2020 and 2019 measurement date was determined 
using the following actuarial assumptions:

2021 2020

Valuation date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019
Measurement date June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Actuarial cost method Entry-age normal cost method Entry-age normal cost method
Actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate for accounting purposes 7.00% 7.00%
Inflation 2.50% 2.50%
Aggregate salary increases 3.00% 3.00%
Demographic actuarial assumptions Derived using CalPERS 2017

Experience Study
Mortality improvement MacLeod Watts Scale 2018

applied generationally
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.4% initially, trending down

to 4.0% in 2076 and later

Derived using CalPERS 2017 
Experience Study

MacLeod Watts Scale 2018 
applied generationally

5.4% initially, trending down 
to 4.0% in 2076 and later

Participation rate assumption 100% 100%
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Changes in actuarial assumptions included the following: assumed mortality, termination, and retirement rates were 
updated to the CalPERS 2017 experience study from the 2014 experience study.  The inflation rate decreased from 
2.75% to 2.50%, salary increases decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%, the assumed future increases change to monthly 
benefit caps and there were updated assumptions regarding dependent coverage.

The long-term expected rate of return on Plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of Plan investment expense and 
inflation) was used and developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term 
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each 
major asset class in CERBT Strategy 1 used by the District are summarized in the following table:

2021
Years 1-10 Years 11+ Years 1-10

202
0 Years 11+

1-10 Year 11+ Year 1-10 Year 11+ Year
Target Expected Real Target Expected Real Target Expected Real Target Expected Real

Investment Class Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return Allocation Rate of Return

Global equity 59.00% 4.80% 59.00% 5.98% 59.00% 4.80% 59.00% 5.98%
Fixed income 25.00% 1.10% 25.00% 2.62% 25.00% 1.10% 25.00% 2.62%
Global Real Estate (REITs) 8.00% 3.20% 8.00% 5.00% 8.00% 3.20% 8.00% 5.00%
Treasury Inflation

Protected Securities 5.00% 0.25% 5.00% 1.46% 5.00% 0.25% 5.00% 1.46%
Commodities 3.00% 1.50% 3.00% 2.87% 3.00% 1.50% 3.00% 2.87%

Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Discount Rate:  The accounting discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.00% at the June 30, 
2020 and 2019 measurement dates, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that District contributions will continue based upon the current funding policy.  Based on those 
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit 
payments for current members for all future years.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability:

2021 2020
Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset) Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)

Balance at July 1 $   850,801 $        995,463 $        (144,662) $   909,102 $     834,315 $            74,787
Changes for the year:

Service cost        58,602               58,602        43,073               43,073
Interest        62,422               62,422        65,631               65,631
Contributions - employer             83,559             (83,559)        138,178           (138,178)
Plan experience                              (134,011)           (134,011)
Changes in assumptions                                  (3,816)               (3,816)
Net investment income             35,056             (35,056)          52,327             (52,327)
Benefit payments       (35,325)           ( 35,325)                               ( 29,178)         (29,178)
Administrative expense                 (487)                   4 87              (179)                    179

Net changes        85,699             82,803                 2,896       (58,301)        161,148           (219,449)

Balance at June 30 $   936,500 $     1,078,266 $        (141,766) $   850,801 $     995,463 $        (144,662)
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: The 
following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would be if 
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current 
discount rate:

2021 2020
Current Current

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 6.00% 7.00% 8.00%

Net OPEB liability (asset) $        (4,022) $      (141,766) $   ( 253,412) $      (20,217) $     ( 144,662) $    (245,576)

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District's net OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point 
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

2021 2020
Current Current

Healthcare Cost Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase 1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Net OPEB liability (asset) $    (274,055) $       ( 141,766) $      2 5,943 $    (264,845) $      (144,662) $         7,700

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position:  Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued CERBT financial report at www.calpers.ca.gov.

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB: For the years ended June 30, 2021 
and 2020, the District recognized OPEB expense of $42,860 and $32,115 respectively. The District reported 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources at June 
30:

2021 2020
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date $    93,267 $    83,559
Differences between actual and expected experience $   (103,203) $   (118,607)
Changes in assumptions       16,574          ( 2,938)       20,265          ( 3,377)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments       30,448             ( 995)

Total $  140,289 $   (106,141) $  103,824 $   (122,979)

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the following fiscal year.  The recognition period for 
the remaining amounts differs depending on the source of the gain or loss.  The net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on OPEB plan investments is recognized over 5 years.  The net difference between expected and 
actual experience and changes in assumptions are recognized over the expected average remaining service lifetime 
(EARSL), which was 8.70 years at June 30, 2021.  Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
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Year Ended June 30 2021 2020

2021 $     (14,557)
2022 $       (7,296)        (14,556)
2023 (3,054)        (10,314)
2024 (2,916)        (10,176)
2025 (4,894)        (12,152)
2026 (14,033)

Thereafter        (26,926)        (40,959)

$     (59,119) $   (102,714)

Payable to the OPEB Plan:  There was no payable to the OPEB plan at June 30, 2021 and 2020.

NOTE J – OTHER STATE GRANT PROGRAMS

California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services:  Included in the $19.925 billion Proposition 1B State general 
obligation bonds was $1 billion set aside for Transit System Safety, Security & Disaster Response projects.  The 
California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) has been charged with administering these funds for 
capital projects that provide increased protection against a security and safety threat, and for capital expenditures to 
increase the capacity of transit operations, including waterborne transit operators, to develop disaster response 
transportation systems that can move people, goods and emergency personnel and equipment in the aftermath of a 
disaster impairing the mobility of goods, people and equipment.  The District received funds from the Proposition 
1B California Transit Assistance Fund.

The District did not receive any funds during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.  Unspent funds represent 
facility safety and security program funds (camera equipment to be installed on buses).

Qualifying expenses must be encumbered within three years from the date of the allocation and expended within 
three years from the date of the encumbrance.  As of June 30, funds received and expended were verified in the 
course of the audit as follows:

2021 2020

Unexpended proceeds, beginning of year $       45,289 $       64,453
Interest earnings               588            5,721
Apollo Video Camera System adjustment          13,227
Expenses incurred:

Bus Shelters         (38,112)

Unexpended proceeds, end of year $       45,877 $       45,289

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP):  The LCTOP is one of several programs that are part of the 
Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program established by the California Legislature in 
2014 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emission and improve mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. 
Approved projects in LCTOP support new or expanded bus or rail services, expand intermodal transit facilities, and 
may include equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance and other costs to operate those services or facilities, with 
each project reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The program is administered by Caltrans in coordination with Air 
Resource Board (ARB) and the State Controller’s Office (SCO).
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The District received $349,582 and $345,372 during the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 for zero emission 
electric buses.  As of June 30, LCTOP funds received and expended were verified in the course of the audit as 
follows:

2021 2020

Unexpended proceeds, beginning of year $       680,218 $     465,622
Revenue received          349,582        345,372
Interest earnings            11,028          17,746
Expenses incurred:

Connect card program administrative costs       (148,522)

Unexpended proceeds, end of year $    1,040,828 $     680,218

NOTE K – INSURANCE COVERAGE

The District participates in the California Transit Indemnity Pool (CalTIP), a public entity risk pool of governmental 
transit operators within California, for liability (general, automobile, public officials errors and omissions and 
employment practices) and vehicle physical damage (collision and comprehensive).  The District is provided with 
excess coverage fund for these items through commercial insurance.  Loss contingency reserves established by 
CalTIP are funded by contributions from member agencies.  The District pays an annual premium to CalTIP that 
includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk, claims adjusting, legal costs, 
administrative and other costs to operate CalTIP.  The District’s CalTIP pooled coverage is $2 million for liability 
and $100,000 for vehicle physical damage coverage for each occurrence.  Employment practices liability coverage is 
through the Employment Risk Management Authority in the amount of $1,000,000.  The District also has excess 
liability coverage through private insurance for an additional $23,000,000 for liability coverage, $24,900,000 for 
vehicle physical damage for a total of $25 million for liability and $25 million for vehicle physical damage coverage 
per occurrence.  The District has no deductible for its liability policy and a deductible of $500 to $10,000 for the 
vehicle physical damage policy.  The District has excess liability coverage for the employment practices policy of 
$2,000,000 for each occurrence and a $4,000,000 aggregate limit.  The District has a $50,000 deductible for the 
policy.  As of June 30, 2021, the CalTIP confidence level remains at 90%.  Settled claims resulting from all risks 
have not exceeded the District’s commercial insurance coverage.  Reductions in insurance coverage in the past three 
years include a reduction of total pooled and private insurance limits for the liability program from $40 million to 
$25 million during 2021 and a reduction in the private excess coverage for vehicle physical damage of $10 million 
in 2020.  CalTIP may be contacted at 1750 Creekside Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California 95833 or at 
www.caltiponline.org.

NOTE L – CONCENTRATIONS

The District receives a substantial amount of its support from a statewide retail sales tax from the Local 
Transportation Fund created by the Transportation Development Act as well as Federal Transit Administration 
grants.  A significant reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have a significant effect on the 
District’s activities.

NOTE M – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Contingency:  The District receives funding for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the 
granting agencies funding source. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement for expenses disallowed 
under the terms and conditions of the contracts.  Management is of the opinion that no material liabilities will result 
from such potential audits.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE M – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Contract Commitments:  On July 19, 2018, the District entered into a seven-year agreement with Transdev to 
provide transit services.  Contract amendment number 1 was approved in March 2020 due to the impact of the 
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic to allow Transdev to pay its employees even if they were not able to provide 
transit services to the District due to the service changes from the pandemic.  The District used a Federal
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act grant to fund the costs incurred under the contract 
amendment in the amount of $772,340 for the year ended June 30, 2021 and $17,419 to date during the year ended 
June 30, 2022.

The amounts payable to Transdev for the period of August 1, 2018 through July 31, 2025 was originally not exceed 
$71,555,394 and was revised to $66,048,898 under contract amendment number 2 approved in November 2021 
using current service levels.  The remaining balance of the contract at June 30, 2021 under contract amendment 
number 2 using current service levels was $28,955,212 and the remaining balance at June 30, 2020 under the 
original contract was $53,427,323.  This agreement, upon approval from the District, may be extended for up to five 
additional years from August 1, 2025 through July 31, 2030 at an amount not to exceed $52,612,280 under contract 
amendment number 2 using current service levels.

Legal Contingencies:  The District is party to claims arising in the ordinary course of business.  After taking into 
consideration information furnished by legal counsel to the District as to the current status of the claims to which the 
District is a party, management is of the opinion that the ultimate aggregate liability represented thereby, if any, will 
not have a material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations of the District.

Other:  On December 14, 2018, the California Air Resources Board adopted Resolution 18-60 which enacted 
mandates that beginning January 1, 2026, twenty-five percent of the District’s new bus purchases in each calendar 
year must be zero-emission buses and beginning January 1, 2029 all new District bus purchases must be zero- 
emission buses.  The resolution allows for hardship exemptions.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. 
The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on the District’s operational and financial performance will depend on 
certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and its impact on the citizens of the County 
of Yolo, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.  At this point, the full extent to which COVID-19 may 
impact the financial condition or results of operations is uncertain.  Possible effects could be a loss or reduction of 
revenue sources.

NOTE N– RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The County of Yolo, a member of the Yolo County Transportation District, provides certain legal, accounting, 
investment and other professional services to the District and charges a user fee for fuel charges.  Legal services are 
billed separately and at amounts that will approximately recover the County’s full cost of providing such services. 
Expense for services provided by the County totaled $74,735 and $31,487 for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 
2020, respectively.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)

Last 10 Years

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Proportion of the net pension liability at

measurement date 0.03149% 0.03123% 0.03102% 0.03066% 0.03082% 0.03277% 0.03100%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $    1,328,227 $    1,250,443 $    1,169,092 $    1,208,539 $    1,070,526 $       899,146 $       766,359
Covered - employee payroll for measurement period $       833,828 $       835,543 $       868,639 $       829,909 $       688,885 $       629,657 $       623,001
Proportionate share of the net pension liability as

percentage of covered payroll 159.29% 149.66% 134.59% 145.62% 155.40% 142.80% 123.01%
Plan fiduciary net position $    3,666,769 $    3,385,880 $    3,288,483 $    2,941,348 $    2,750,531 $    2,694,045 $    2,478,946
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 73.41% 73.03% 73.77% 70.88% 71.98% 74.98% 76.39%

Notes to Schedule:
Changes in assumptions:

Discount rate changes in accounting valuation 7.15% 7.15% 7.15% 7.15% 7.65% 7.65% 7.50%

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)
Last 10 Years

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution during employer's
fiscal year (actuarially determined) $       180,897 $       179,921 $       155,826 $       149,656 $       138,557 $       123,865 $       134,229

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions         (180,897)         (179,921)         (155,826)         (149,656)         (138,557)         (123,865)         (134,229)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $               - $               - $               - $                   - $                   - $                   - $                   -

Covered - employee payroll for employer's fiscal year $       800,368 $       833,828 $       835,543 $       868,639 $       829,909 $       688,885 $       629,657
Contributions as a percentage of covered - employee

payroll 22.60% 21.58% 18.65% 17.23% 16.70% 17.98% 21.32%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date: June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012

Valuation date: June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Measurement date: June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method

Entry age normal cost method
Level percentage of payroll, closed

Varies, not more than 30 years
Market value

Inflation 2.500% 2.625% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Salary increases Varies depending on entry age and service
Investment rate of return and discount rate 7.00% 7.25% 7.375% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Retirement age 
Mortality

50-67 Years.  Probabilities of retirement are based on the most recent CalPERS Experience Study
Most recent CalPERS Experience Study

Omitted Years:  GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2015.  No information was available prior to this date.  Future years will be reported 
prospectively as they become available.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (UNAUDITED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $         58,602 $         43,073 $         39,508 $         38,264
Interest            62,422            65,631            60,354            55,162
Differences between expected and actual experience         (134,011)
Changes in assumptions             (3,816)            27,647
Benefit payments           (35,325)           (29,178)           (22,747)           (23,359)
Net change in total OPEB liability            85,699           (58,301)          104,762            70,067
Total OPEB liability - beginning          850,801          909,102          804,340          734,273

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 936,500 850,801 909,102 804,340

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $          83,559 $        138,178 $        108,591 $          50,008
Net investment income            35,056            52,327            54,185            44,697
Benefit payments           (35,325)           (29,178)           (22,747)           (23,359)
Investment Experience            21,219
Administrative expenses               ( 487)               ( 179)             (1,293)               ( 337)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position            82,803          161,148          138,736            92,228
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning          995,463          834,315          695,579          603,351

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) $    1,078,266 $       995,463 $       834,315 $       695,579

Net OPEB liability (asset) - ending (a)-(b) $      (141,766) $      (144,662) $         74,787 $       108,761

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 115.14% 117.00% 91.77% 86.48%

Covered-employee payroll - measurement period $       875,236 $       873,424 $       871,734 $       873,200

Net OPEB liability as percentage of covered-employee payroll -16.20% -16.56% 8.58% 12.46%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Measurement period - fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Benefit changes None None None None
Changes in assumptions - discount rate change 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.25%

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was available prior to this 
date.  Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially determined contribution - employer fiscal year $          92,089 $           83,559 $          8 0,978 $         7 9,191
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions            (93,267)             (83,559)          (138,178)         (108,591)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $           (1,178) $                     - $         (57,200) $        (29,400)

Covered-employee payroll - employer fiscal year $        880,557 $         875,236 $        8 73,424 $       8 71,734

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 10.59% 9.55% 15.82% 12.46%

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2017
Measurement period - fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method/period
Asset valuation method

Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Level percentage of payroll, closed 30 years

Market value
Discount rate - actuarially determined contributions 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75%
Discount rate - accounting 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.25%
Inflation 2.50% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Salary increases 3.00% 3.25% 3.25% 3.25%
Retirement age 
Mortality

50 to 75 years
Latest CalPERS Experience Study

Mortality improvement - MacLeod Watts Scale Generationally 2018 2017 2017 2017
Healthcare trend rates 5.4% initially,

trending down
to 4.0%

trending down
to 4.0%

7.5% initially, trending down
to 5.0%

Participation assumption 100% 100% 100% 100%

Omitted years: GASB Statement No. 75 was implemented during the year ended June 30, 2018. No information was available prior to this 
date.  Information will be added prospectively as it becomes available until 10 years are reported.

76

5.4% initially,



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

77



YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2021

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
Eliminating

Entries Total
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $      6,353,449 $      6,353,449 $      6,353,449
Due from Other Governments         4,237,681 $      601,151         4,838,832         4,838,832
Due from ADA Paratransit Service            285,178            285,178 $     (285,178)
Accounts Receivable            822,583         149,719            972,302            972,302

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       11,698,891         750,870       12,449,761        (285,178)       12,164,583

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents         1,529,556           26,535         1,556,091         1,556,091
Other Postemployment Benefits Asset 141,766            141,766            141,766
Capital Assets:

Nondepreciable            465,000            465,000            465,000
Depreciable, Net       22,174,166         601,600       22,775,766       22,775,766

Total Capital Assets, Net       22,639,166         601,600       23,240,766       23,240,766
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS       24,310,488         628,135       24,938,623       24,938,623

TOTAL ASSETS       36,009,379      1,379,005       37,388,384        (285,178)       37,103,206

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan            323,524            323,524            323,524
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan            140,289            140,289            140,289

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES            463,813            463,813            463,813
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $    36,473,192 $   1,379,005 $    37,852,197 $     (285,178) $    37,567,019

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $         899,912 $      158,471 $      1,058,383 $      1,058,383
Accrued Wages              25,921              25,921              25,921
Due to Other Governments            176,580           30,706            207,286            207,286
Unearned Revenue         1,040,828         1,040,828         1,040,828
Due to Fixed Route Service         285,178            285,178 $     (285,178)
Accrued Compensated Absences 52,906              52,906              52,906

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES         2,196,147         474,355         2,670,502        (285,178)         2,385,324

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued Compensated Absences              28,411              28,411              28,411
Net Pension Liability         1,328,227         1,328,227         1,328,227

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABIITIES         1,356,638         1,356,638         1,356,638
TOTAL LIABIITIES         3,552,785         474,355         4,027,140        (285,178)         3,741,962

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan              18,579              18,579              18,579
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan            106,141            106,141            106,141

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES            124,720            124,720            124,720

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets       22,639,166         601,600       23,240,766       23,240,766
Restricted for Equipment Replacement and Capital Projects            488,728           26,535            515,263            515,263
Restricted for Capital Purposes - State Transit Assistance            215,316            215,316            215,316
Unrestricted         9,452,477         276,515         9,728,992         9,728,992

TOTAL NET POSITION       32,795,687         904,650       33,700,337       33,700,337
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION $    36,473,192 $   1,379,005 $    37,852,197 $     (285,178) $    37,567,019
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2020

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
Eliminating

Entries Total
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $      6,954,740                      $      6,954,740 $      6,954,740
Due from Other Governments 4,608,106 $      380,802 4,988,908         4,988,908
Due from ADA Paratransit Service 228,961 228,961 $   (228,961)
Accounts Receivable 85,653         237,343 322,996            322,996

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  11,877,460 618,145 12,495,605      (228,961)       12,266,644

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,149,445 26,260 1,175,705         1,175,705
Other Posemployement Benefits Asset 144,662 144,662            144,662
Capital Assets:

Nondepreciable 465,000 465,000            465,000
Depreciable, net 24,672,132 842,058 25,514,190       25,514,190

Total Capital Assets, Net  25,137,132 842,058 25,979,190       25,979,190
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS  26,431,239 868,318 27,299,557       27,299,557

TOTAL ASSETS  38,308,699 1,486,463 39,795,162      (228,961)       39,566,201

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan 370,222 370,222            370,222
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 103,824 103,824            103,824

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 474,046 474,046 474,046
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED

OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES  $    38,782,745 $   1,486,463 $    40,269,208 $   (228,961) $    40,040,247

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $      2,227,039 $      159,005 $      2,386,044 $      2,386,044
Accrued Wages 27,366 27,366              27,366
Due to Other Governments 226,117 28,943 255,060            255,060
Unearned Revenue 674,713                 674,713            674,713
Due to Fixed Route Service 228,961 228,961 $   (228,961)
Accrued Compensated Absences 57,488 57,488              57,488

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  3,212,723 416,909 3,629,632      (228,961)         3,400,671

NONCURRENT LIABILITES
Accrued Compensated Absences              36,602              36,602              36,602
Net Pension Liability         1,250,443         1,250,443         1,250,443

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES          1,287,045         1,287,045         1,287,045
TOTAL LIABIITIES          4,499,768         416,909         4,916,677      (228,961)         4,687,716

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension Plan 70,216              70,216              70,216
Other Postemployment Benefits Plan 122,979            122,979            122,979

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES            193,195            193,195            193,195

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets 25,137,132 842,058 25,979,190       25,979,190
Restricted for Equipment Replacement and Capital Projects 469,227 26,260 495,487            495,487
Restricted for Capital Purposes - State Transit Assistance 69,694 69,694              69,694
Unrestricted 8,413,729         201,236 8,614,965                      8,614,965

TOTAL NET POSITION  34,089,782      1,069,554 35,159,336       35,159,336
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES, AND NET POSITION  $    38,782,745 $   1,486,463 $    40,269,208 $   (228,961) $    40,040,247
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
OPERATING REVENUE

Passenger Fares $         859,673 $         23,080 $         882,753
Special Fares         1,701,323            72,190         1,773,513

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE         2,560,996            95,270         2,656,266

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Transportation         7,451,314       1,247,774         8,699,088
Salaries and Benefits         1,183,191          198,134         1,381,325
Insurance            880,662          314,564         1,195,226
Vehicle Fuel            858,583            82,380            940,963
Other Services and Supplies            749,606          188,503            938,109
Depreciation         2,586,993          240,457         2,827,450

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES       13,710,349       2,271,812       15,982,161

NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS     ( 11,149,353)      (2,176,542)      (13,325,895)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Grants:

Operating Grants         5,903,364          694,500         6,597,864
Local Transportation Fund and State Transit

Assistance Allocation         3,210,430       1,316,391         4,526,821
Federal Fuel Excise Tax Refund            195,416            195,416
Low Carbon Fuel Credits 174,867            174,867
Interest Revenue              75,418                (528)              74,890
Compressed Natural Gas Facility Charges              40,069              40,069
Auxiliary Transportation              11,634                                    11,634
State Grants                3,345                                      3,345
Miscellaneous Revenues 59,136                                    59,136
Cost of Fuel Sales to External Parties             (40,069)             (40,069)
Other Pass-through Grants to Other Governments             (24,000)             (24,000)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets              14,999              1,275              16,274

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)         9,624,609       2,011,638       11,636,247

NET LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS       ( 1,524,744)         (164,904)       ( 1,689,648)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
State Transit Assistance 170,298            170,298
State of Good Repair 60,351              60,351

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS            230,649                                  230,649

CHANGE IN NET POSITION       ( 1,294,095)         (164,904)       ( 1,458,999)

Net Position at Beginning of Year       34,089,782       1,069,554       35,159,336

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $    32,795,687 $       904,650 $    33,700,337
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
OPERATING REVENUE

Passenger Fares $      1,467,407 $         28,641 $      1,496,048
Special Fares 1,753,644          158,311         1,911,955

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 3,221,051          186,952 3,408,003

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased Transportation 7,996,030       1,271,341 9,267,371
Salaries and Benefits 1,418,277                       1,418,277
Insurance 870,239          134,404 1,004,643
Vehicle Fuel 783,809          108,308 892,117
Other Services and Supplies 915,259          121,119 1,036,378
Depreciation 3,196,823          198,496 3,395,319

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 15,180,437       1,833,668 17,014,105

NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (11,959,386)      (1,646,716) (13,606,102)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Federal Transit Administration Grants:

Operating Grants 3,274,143          419,878 3,694,021
Local Transportation Fund and State Transit

Assistance Allocation 5,411,831          985,387 6,397,218
Federal Fuel Excise Tax Refund 799,125 799,125
Low Carbon Fuel Credits 130,920 130,920
Interest Revenue 176,370                 565 176,935
Auxiliary Transportation 283,339                       283,339
State Grants 264,402 264,402
Miscellaneous Revenues 121,565                       121,565
Cost of Fuel Sales to External Parties (203,681) (203,681)
Other Pass-through Grants to Other Governments (24,000) (24,000)
(Loss) Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets (82,674)                 311 (82,363)

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 10,151,340       1,406,141 11,557,481

NET (LOSS) INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS (1,808,046)         (240,575) (2,048,621)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
State Transit Assistance 334,091 334,091
Federal Transit Administration Grant 4,494,040          239,780 4,733,820
Tribe                         119,890            119,890
Other Capital Revenue         4,748,838         4,748,838
Transfers In (Out)             (42,167)            42,167

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS 9,534,802 401,837 9,936,639

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 7,726,756          161,262 7,888,018

Net Position at Beginning of Year       26,363,026          908,292       27,271,318

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $    34,089,782 $    1,069,554 $    35,159,336
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Receipts From Customers $       2,542,812 $          95,903 $       2,638,715
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services     (11,317,228)     (1,831,991)     (13,149,219)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services       (1,174,971)        (198,134)       (1,373,105)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES       (9,949,387)     (1,934,222)     (11,883,609)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Grants and Subsidies         9,117,139      1,807,420       10,924,559
Pass-through Payments            (24,000)            (24,000)
Other Income          (322,994)          (322,994)
Internal Receipts (Payments)            (56,217)           56,217

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES         8,713,928      1,863,637       10,577,565

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions Received         1,009,839           70,113         1,079,952
Acquisition of Capital Assets            (89,027)                                 (89,027)
Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets              18,049             1,275              19,324

NET CASH PROVIDED BY CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES            938,861           71,388         1,010,249

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Pooled Investments              75,418               (528)              74,890

NET CASH PROVIDED  (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES              75,418               (528)              74,890

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS          (221,180)                275          (220,905)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year         8,104,185           26,260         8,130,445

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $       7,883,005 $          26,535 $       7,909,540

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Cash and Cash Equivalents $       6,353,449                      $       6,353,449
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents         1,529,556 $          26,535         1,556,091

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $       7,883,005 $          26,535 $       7,909,540

RECONCILIATION OF NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Loss From Operations $    (11,149,353) $   (2,176,542) $    (13,325,895)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss from Operations

to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities:
Depreciation         2,586,993         240,457         2,827,450
Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments            (18,583)                633            (17,950)
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB Plan            (36,465)            (36,465)
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Plan              46,698              46,698
Accounts Payable and Due to Other Governments       (1,376,664)             1,230       (1,375,434)
Accrued Wages              (1,445)                 (1,445)
Accrued Compensated Absences            (12,773)            (12,773)
Net OPEB Asset/Liability                2,896                2,896
Net Pension Liability              77,784              77,784
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB Plan            (16,838)            (16,838)
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Plan            (51,637)            (51,637)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES $      (9,949,387) $   (1,934,222) $    (11,883,609)
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Fixed Route
Service

ADA
Paratransit

Service Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Receipts From Customers  $       3,297,817 $        181,272 $       3,479,089
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services      (10,312,434)     (1,568,200)     (11,880,634)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services        (1,372,495)             (1,372,495)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES        (8,387,112)     (1,386,928)       (9,774,040)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Operating Grants and Subsidies          8,743,546      1,574,987       10,318,533
Pass-through Payments             (24,000)             1,609            (22,391)
Other Income             168,846                168,846
Internal Receipts (Payments)               (1,609)              (1,609)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES          8,886,783      1,576,596       10,463,379

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions Received          4,845,678         169,667         5,015,345
Acquisition of Capital Assets        (5,297,505)        (359,669)       (5,657,174)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets              19,050                311              19,361

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES           (432,777)        (189,691)          (622,468)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Pooled Investments             176,370                565            176,935

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES             176,370                565            176,935

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS             243,264                542            243,806

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year           7,860,921           25,718         7,886,639

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $       8,104,185 $          26,260 $       8,130,445

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Cash and Cash Equivalents  $       6,954,740                      $       6,954,740
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents          1,149,445 $          26,260         1,175,705

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  $       8,104,185 $          26,260 $       8,130,445

RECONCILIATION OF NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Loss From Operations  $    (11,959,386) $   (1,646,716) $    (13,606,102)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss from Operations
to Net Cash Used for Operating Activities:

Depreciation          3,196,823         198,496         3,395,319
Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable and Due from Other Governments              74,769            (5,680)              69,089
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB Plan              58,310              58,310
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Plan              27,978              27,978
Accounts Payable and Due to Other Governments            254,900           66,972            321,872
Accrued Wages                4,634                   4,634
Accrued Compensated Absences                   (30)                   (30)
Net OPEB Asset/Liability          (219,449)          (219,449)
Net Pension Liability              81,351              81,351
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB Plan            109,695            109,695
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Plan            (16,707)            (16,707)

NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES  $      (8,387,112) $   (1,386,928) $      (9,774,040)
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825

Telephone: (916) 564‐8727 
FAX: (916) 564‐8728

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, THE 
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND OTHER STATE PROGRAM GUIDELINES

To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District
Woodland, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Yolo County Transportation District (the District), as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 14, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters (including Other State Grant Programs)

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. Our audit 
was further made to determine that Transportation Development Act (TDA) Funds allocated and received by the 
District were expended in conformance with the applicable statutes, rules and regulations of the TDA and Section 
6667 of the California Code of Regulations. We also tested the receipt and appropriate expenditures of other state 
grant funds, as presented in Note J to the financial statements, in accordance with other state grant program statues
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To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District

and guidelines. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed an instance of 
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards, the TDA or 
other state grant program requirements that is reported as finding 2021-001 in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.

District’s Response to Findings

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and responses.  The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards, the TDA and other state grant programs in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 14, 2022
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550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825

Telephone: (916) 564‐8727 
FAX: (916) 564‐8728

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Yolo County Transportation District
Woodland, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Yolo County Transportation District's (the District) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
the District's major federal programs for year ended June 30, 2021.  The District's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’s major federal programs based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2021.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the type of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
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have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. 
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than 
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not 
been identified. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as finding 2021-001 to be a significant deficiency.

The District’s response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 14, 2022
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditor’s report issued:  Unmodified

2. Internal controls over financial reporting:

a. Material weaknesses identified  No

b. Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?  No

3. Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?  None noted

Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major programs:

a. Material weaknesses identified?  No

b. Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?  Yes

2. Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs:  Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
Section 200.516(a)?  No

4. Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listing (AL) Number

20.507

5. Dollar Threshold used to distinguish between

Name of Federal Program 

Federal Transit Formula Grants

Type A and Type B programs?  $750,000

6. Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under 2
CFR Section 200.516(a)?  Yes

89



YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

B. CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

Finding 2021-001 – Significant Deficiency – Compliance and Other Matters

See Finding 2021-001 under CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR 
FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT below.

C. CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD
PROGRAMS AUDIT

Finding 2021-001 – Significant Deficiency – Internal Control Over Compliance

AL No:  20.507

Federal Grantor: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, Federal Transit Formula 
Grants - Direct Award

Award Nos.: CA-2020-223-00

Condition: The grant expenses reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) excluded 
grant accrual adjustments for a major program award, excluded two federal grants, and had grant award 
numbers that did not agree to the grant agreements.

Criteria: 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F (Uniform Guidance) Section 200.502 states, “The auditee should prepare a 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the period covered by the auditee’s financial statements.” 
Internal controls over the SEFA should be in place ensure accrual basis expenses incurred under the federal 
program are properly reported as expenses on the SEFA and are properly reported as revenue in the financial 
statements prior to the start of the single audit.

Cause: Expenses reported on the SEFA were not fully reconciled to all federal revenue accounts in the general 
ledger.

Effect: Adjustments were needed to properly report expenses on the SEFA and federal revenues in the financial 
statements.  If expenses are not properly reported on the SEFA prior to the start of the single audit, the auditor 
could omit expenses from testing, which would result in the District's single audit not complying with audit 
standards.

Recommendation: We recommend the District reconcile grant expenses in the general ledger to the SEFA and 
revenue in the financial statements and have a second member of management review the general ledger detail, 
grant agreements and other information used to prepare the SEFA prior to the start of the audit in the future.

View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: Management’s response and planned 
corrective action is included at the end of this report.

D. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None

E. PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Federal Pass-through
Assistance Entity Program

Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ Listing (AL) Identifying or Award
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Amount Expenses

U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration
Direct Award

Federal Transit Formula Grants - Direct Award
CARES Act Operating Assistance and Planning 20.507 11,009,254 3,896,115
Operating Assistance & Preventive Maintenance, Rt. 42 "Y" Shuttle 20.507 3,896,698 1,515,806
Operating Assistance and Preventive Maintenance 20.507 3,621,262 390,778

Total Direct Awards 18,527,214 5,802,699

Passed-through the Sacramento Regional Transit District
Federal Transit Formula Grants

UC Davis Med Center Shuttle Ops 20.507 CA-2019-157-00 1,500,000 164,574
Total Federal Transit Formula Grants     20,027,214     5,967,273

Passed through the California Department of Transportation, Division of Rail & Mass Transportation
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit Program

Rural Operating Assistance 20.509 64BO20-01462          148,329        148,329
Operating Assistance CARES Act Phase 2 20.509 64VO20-01356          298,060        298,060

Total Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit Program          446,389        446,389
Total U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration     20,473,603     6,413,662

U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration
Passed-through the Sacramento Area Council of Governments

Highway Planning and Construction
Civic Lab Year 1 Pilot Project 20.205 SA1819108          132,795          57,202

Total U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration          132,795          57,202
Total U.S. Department of Transportation     20,606,398     6,470,864

U.S. Department of the Treasury
Passed-through the County of Yolo

Coronavirus Relief Fund
CARES Transit Assistance 21.019 None          127,000        127,000

Total passed through the County of Yolo          127,000        127,000

TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $   2 0,733,398 $   6 ,597,864

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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YOLO COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE A – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of 
the Yolo County Transportation District (the District) under programs of the federal government for the year ended 
June 30, 2021.  The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. 
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of 
the District’s operations, it is not intended to be and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, 
or cash flows of the District.

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenses reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.  Such expenses are recognized 
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenses are not 
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE C – INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION PLAN

The District did not allocate any indirect costs to its federal programs.

NOTE D – SUBRECIPIENTS

The District did not have any subrecipients of its federal programs.
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Yolo County Transportation
District

City of Davis – City of West Sacramento – City of Winters
City of Woodland – County of Yolo

EX Officio – Caltrans District 3 – University of California,
Davis

350 Industrial Way 
Woodland, CA 95776

530.661.0816  FAX: 530.661.1732
www.yolobus.com

March 2, 2022

TO: Richardson & Company LLP
FROM: Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director
SUBJECT: Yolo County Transportation District (YCTD)

FY 2020-21 Single Audit Management Response and Corrective Action Plan

Finding: 2021-001
Federal Grantor: US Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, Federal 
Transit Formula Grants  - Direct Award, Award No: CA-2020-223-00

Finding: The grant expenses reported on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) 
excluded grant accrual adjustments for a major program award, excluded two federal grants, and had 
grant award numbers that did not agree to the grant agreements.

Auditor Recommendation: We recommend the District reconcile grant expenses in the general ledger to 
the SEFA and revenue in the financial statements and have a second member of management review the 
general ledger detail, grant agreements and other information used to prepare the SEFA prior to the start 
of the audit in the future.

YCTD Contact Person Responsible for the Corrective Action: Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director, 
Abernstein@yctd.org.

Management Response and Corrective Action Plan: YCTD concurs with the finding and 
recommendation. YCTD has designated a financial staff member to reconcile grant expenses in the 
general ledger to the SEFA. The Deputy Director, Finance and Administration position will be tasked 
with reviewing the general ledger detail, grant agreements, and other information used to prepare the 
SEFA prior to the start of future financial audits. The Deputy Director, Finance and Administration 
position is currently vacant but is anticipated to be filled prior to the preparation of the FY 2021-22 single 
audit materials. If the position is not filled at the time of FY 2021-22 single audit preparation, the Deputy 
Director, Operations will be responsible for reviewing YCTD’s SEFA and underlying ledger and grant 
information prior to submission of the SEFA to auditors. These assignments are effective immediately are 
anticipated to support submission of the YCTD FY 2021-22 SEFA to auditors by 10/31/22.

Sincerely,

Autumn Bernstein
Executive Director

93


	Insert from: "YCTD - DGS Agreement 2022_draft.pdf"
	Insert from: "2022 GSA Info_draft.pdf"
	Participant Name: _________________________________ Date: ______________________
	Contact for Business Issues
	Contact for Gas Billing & Accounting Issues
	Individual Account Information

	Insert from: "2022 GSA Terms-Conditions_.pdf"
	STATE OF CALIFORNIA
	Department of General Services
	Natural Gas Services



	Participant: Yolo County Transportation District  
	Date: July 1, 2022
	1 Fixed: Off
	1 Evergreen: Off
	5 Fixed: Off
	5 Evergreen: Off
	Cutomer PRINTED NAME AND TITLE: Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director
	Customer PRINTED NAME AND TITLE: 
	Participant Name: Yolo County Transportation District
	Name 1-1: Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director
	Phone 1-1: 530-402-2812
	Phone 1-2: 
	Address 1 - 1: 350 Industrial Way
	Address 1 - 2: Woodland
	Address 1 - 3: CA 95776
	Email 1 - 1: abernstein@yctd.org
	Name 2-1: Autumn Bernstein, Executive Director
	Phone 2-1: 530-402-2812
	Phone 2-2: 
	Address 2 - 1: 350 Industrial Way
	Address 2 - 2: Woodland
	Address 2 - 3: CA 95776
	Email 2 - 1: abernstein@yctd.org
	Name 3-1: Leticia Ambriz
	Phone 3-1: 530-402-2816
	Phone 3-2: 
	Address 3 - 1: 350 Industrial Way
	Address 3 - 2: Woodland
	Address 3 - 3: CA 95776
	Email 3 - 1: lambriz@yctd.org
	Utility Account: 
	Meter NumberA: 
	Meter AddressA: 
	Other InformationA: 
	Meter NumberB: 
	Meter AddressB: 
	Other InformationB: 
	Contact NameA: 
	PhoneA: 
	EmailA: 
	Contact NameB: 
	PhoneB: 
	EmailB: 


